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OCTOBER 25, 2022
NOTICE OF DECISION

Landowner
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October 25, 2022

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH PLANNING COMMISSION
NOTICE OF DECISION
MEETING OF OCTOBER 24, 2022

Lot 10, Lake Estates Subdivision Building Setback Encroachment Permit
KPB File 2022-121; KPB PC Resolution 2022-46
Location: on GL Hollier Street, Ridgeway area.

By unanimous consent and based on the following findings of fact, the Kenai Peninsula Borough Planning
Commission conditionally approved the building setback encroachment permit thereby adopting KPB PC
Resolution 2022-46 during their regularly scheduled meeting of October 24, 2022.

Standard 1. The building setback encroachment may not interfere with road maintenance.

Findings:

10.  The shop is slightly angled with the northeast corner being the furthest encroachment into the
setback at 9.8 feet into the setback.

12.  The road is constructed by privately maintained.

13.  Due to the width of the street, improvements, the location of Sports Lake, it does not appear that
this right-of-way will ever serve additional lots.

14.  The encroachment is along a straight portion of the right-of-way.

15.  There are no terrain issues within the dedication.

Standard 2. The building setback encroachment may not interfere with sight lines or distances.

Findings:

10. The shop is slightly angled with the northeast corner being the furthest encroachment into the
setback at 9.8 feet into the setback.

11.  There does not appear to be any line of sight issues.

12.  The road is constructed by privately maintained.

13.  Due to the width of the street, improvements, the location of Sports Lake, it does not appear that this
right-of-way will ever serve additional lots.

14.  The encroachment is along a straight portion of the right-of-way.

15.  There are no terrain issues within the dedication.

Standard 3. The building setback encroachment may not create a safety hazard.
Findings:

10. The shop is slightly angled with the northeast corner being the furthest encroachment into the
setback at 9.8 feet into the setback.
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11.
12.
13.

14.
15.

There does not appear to be any line of sight issues.

The road is constructed by privately maintained.

Due to the width of the street, improvements, the location of Sports Lake, it does not appear that this
right-of-way will ever serve additional lots.

The encroachment is along a straight portion of the right-of-way.

There are no terrain issues within the dedication.

The approval is subject to:

1.

Approved a permit to allow only the encroaching portion of the shop that extends 9.8 feet into the 20
foot building setback adjoining GL Hollier Street right-of-way on the west boundary of Lot 10, Lake
Estates Subdivision, granted by Lake Estates Subdivision (K-1648).

That any new, replacement and/or additional construction will be subject to the twenty-foot building
setback limit.

That the twenty-foot building setback shall apply to the remainder of said lot.

That an exhibit drawing or as-built survey prepared by a licensed land surveyor, showing the location
of the portion of the building setback exception to be granted be attached to and made a part of this
Resolution, becoming page 2 of 2.

That this resolution is eligible for recording upon being signed by the Planning Commission chairperson
and will be deemed void if not recorded within 90 days of adoption.

That this Resolution becomes effective upon being properly recorded with petitioner being responsible
for payment of recording fee.

Our office is responsible for recording the resolution. Please send a check to this office for $28.84 made
payable to the Kenai Peninsula Borough. The borough has a three-day hold for checks received for
payment of recordation of resolutions.

The deadline to appeal the Planning Commission’s approval is 15 days from the date of this notice. The
resolution cannot be recorded until that period has expired.

The Kenai Peninsula Borough had an as-built done during the compliance review. Staff has reached out to
the surveyor for permission to use the as-built as the required exhibit drawing required for recording. If
permission is not received we will notify you to acquire an as-built for recording.

To ensure timely recording of this document, please send your check to our office (Planning Department,
144 N. Binkley St., Soldotna, AK 99669) no later than January 9, 2023.

Sincerely,

Julie Hindman
Administrative Assistant



Notice was mailed on October 25, 2022 to:

Nancy and David Whitmore
PO Box 881
Soldotna, AK 99669-0881
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October 25, 2022

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH PLANNING COMMISSION
NOTICE OF DECISION
MEETING OF OCTOBER 24, 2022

Lot 10, Lake Estates Subdivision Building Setback Encroachment Permit
KPB File 2022-121; KPB PC Resolution 2022-46
Location: on GL Hollier Street, Ridgeway area.

By unanimous consent and based on the following findings of fact, the Kenai Peninsula Borough Planning
Commission conditionally approved the building setback encroachment permit thereby adopting KPB PC
Resolution 2022-46 during their regularly scheduled meeting of October 24, 2022.

Standard 1. The building setback encroachment may not interfere with road maintenance.

Findings:

10. The shop is slightly angled with the northeast corner being the furthest encroachment into the
setback at 9.8 feet into the setback.

12.  The road is constructed by privately maintained.

13.  Due to the width of the street, improvements, the location of Sports Lake, it does not appear that
this right-of-way will ever serve additional lots.

14.  The encroachment is along a straight portion of the right-of-way.

15.  There are no terrain issues within the dedication.

Standard 2. The building setback encroachment may not interfere with sight lines or distances.

Findings:

10. The shop is slightly angled with the northeast corner being the furthest encroachment into the
setback at 9.8 feet into the setback.

11.  There does not appear to be any line of sight issues.

12.  The road is constructed by privately maintained.

13.  Due to the width of the street, improvements, the location of Sports Lake, it does not appear that this
right-of-way will ever serve additional lots.

14.  The encroachment is along a straight portion of the right-of-way.

15.  There are no terrain issues within the dedication.

Standard 3. The building setback encroachment may not create a safety hazard.
Findings:

10. The shop is slightly angled with the northeast corner being the furthest encroachment into the
setback at 9.8 feet into the setback.
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11.
12.
13.

14.
15.

There does not appear to be any line of sight issues.

The road is constructed by privately maintained.

Due to the width of the street, improvements, the location of Sports Lake, it does not appear that this
right-of-way will ever serve additional lots.

The encroachment is along a straight portion of the right-of-way.

There are no terrain issues within the dedication.

The approval is subject to:

1.

Approved a permit to allow only the encroaching portion of the shop that extends 9.8 feet into the 20
foot building setback adjoining GL Hollier Street right-of-way on the west boundary of Lot 10, Lake
Estates Subdivision, granted by Lake Estates Subdivision (K-1648).

That any new, replacement and/or additional construction will be subject to the twenty-foot building
setback limit.

That the twenty-foot building setback shall apply to the remainder of said lot.

That an exhibit drawing or as-built survey prepared by a licensed land surveyor, showing the location
of the portion of the building setback exception to be granted be attached to and made a part of this
Resolution, becoming page 2 of 2.

That this resolution is eligible for recording upon being signed by the Planning Commission chairperson
and will be deemed void if not recorded within 90 days of adoption.

That this Resolution becomes effective upon being properly recorded with petitioner being responsible
for payment of recording fee.

Per KPB 20.10.110.(H), a decision of the planning commission may be appealed to the hearing officer by a
party of record, as defined by KPB 20.90, within 15 days of the date of notice of decision in accordance with
KPB 21.20.250. The resolution cannot be recorded until that period has expired.

Sincerely,

Julie Hindman
Administrative Assistant
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Notice was mailed on October 25, 2022 to:

Troy Taylor
43680 Ross Dr.
Soldotna, AK 99669
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OCTOBER 24, 2022
MEETING MATERIALS
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E. NEW BUSINESS

1. Building Setback Encroachment Permit
KPB File 2022-121
Lot 10, Lake Estates Subdivision, Plat KN-1648
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Kenai Peninsula Borough Planning Department KPB 2022-121

Aerial View 9/28/2022 N
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AGENDA ITEM E. NEW BUSINESS

ITEM 1. — BUILDING SETBACK ENCROACHMENT PERMIT —
LOT 10, LAKE ESTATES SUBDIVISION (PLAT K-1648)

KPB File No. 2022-121

Planning Commission October 24, 2022

Meeting:

Applicant / Owner: David and Nancy Whitmore of Soldotna, Alaska

Surveyor: Jason Schollenberg / Peninsula Surveying, LLC

General Location: GL Hollier Street, Ridgeway area

Parent Parcel No.: 057-250-01

Legal Description: Lot 10, Lake Estates Subdivision, Plat K-1648, Section 21, Township 5 North,
Range 10 West

Assessing Use: Residential

Zoning: Rural Unrestricted

STAFF REPORT

Specific Request / Purpose as stated in the petition: We are requesting a 20’ Building Setback Exception from
the KPB Planning and Platting Department because our garage has been built approximately 10’ into the setback
for GL Hollier Street, a substandard road. We acknowledge that we are in violation of KPB roads code 14.40.035:
14.40.115.

At our meeting with representative from the Planning and Platting Department on Friday, July 22, 2022, we were
told that the KPB had a surveyor currently surveying 3 parcels in this subdivision, and that we could use this survey
as the As-built Survey or Site Survey required for the Application for Building Setback Encroachment Permit.

This violation was not intentional; it was a collective error in planning how to use our lot (Lot 10) to meet our
objections of building a detached garage, a home, and on-site well and septic systems. The lot is oddly shaped,
with poor soils, having the useable area restricted by both Ross Dr. and GL Hollier St.

In discussion with the builder and the excavation company, we were aware of the required 100’ separation between
well and septic system (including the wells and septic systems of our adjacent neighbors). We were unaware of
the 20’ road setback for GL Hollier St. as there are no dotted lines to indicate this on the plat: a road setback is
shown on the plat for Ross Dr. Our error was in not reading the notes on the plat.

Several photos are included to illustrate the situation.

Page 1of4

J-18




It appears that the 48’ exception to the road setback will not;
1. Not interfere with road maintenance (road is privately maintained).
2. Not interfere with sight lines or distances.
3. Not create a safety hazard.

We appreciate your consideration of this matter.

Site Investigation: The request is to be granted a permit for a 49 foot by 24 foot shed along GL Hollier Street. The
building encroaches 9.8 feet for the length of 49 feet and is slightly angled to be 9.3 feet at the southwest corner of
the shed. KPB GIS imagery does not show the structures being discussed as this is new construction. There are
no steep slopes present within the area being reviewed or with the intersection with Ross Drive, a borough
maintained gravel right-of-way. Wetlands are not present within the right-of-way.

The dedication for GL Hollier Street is only 30 feet wide. This right-of-way does not meet KPB width standards and
while constructed is not maintained by the borough. The right-of-way only provides access to three lots.

The sight distances do not appear to be impacted. GL Hollier Street does have a curve on the northern end. The
area in question is along the straight portion of the right-of-way and located on the side with the outside of the curve
and should not cause any sight issues.

Staff Analysis: Lake Estates Subdivision, Plat K-1648, was recorded in 1969. The plat dedicated Ross Drive and
GL Hollier Street (unnamed on the plat). GL Hollier Street was granted as a 30 foot wide right-of-way. Per the
minutes from the September 8, 1969 Planning Commission meeting, the dedication of 30 feet was allowable as its
intent was to provide access to a land locked parcel, Government Lot 10 that was noted as being the Hollier
property.

The issues were brought to the attention of the KPB Code Compliance and they have been working with the owners
on a resolution for the issue. The plat clearly shows a 25 foot building setback along Ross Drive with a depiction
and label. A depiction of any type of setback was not shown along GL Hollier Street. Staff believes this is due to
the spacing in that area and the inability to depict the setback without causing a problem with required information.
The plat did have a plat note stating a setback from street frontage was to be 25 feet. The Kenai Peninsula Borough
Legal Department reviewed the code that was in place when the plat was approved. The width that was granted
did not fit the width for any of the types of roads defined in code. Per the staff report it appears an exception to
width was granted. This right-of-way fits the definition of Marginal Access Streets from the 1968 KPB code. The
definition states “minor streets which are parallel with and adjacent to arterial streets and highways, and which
provide access to abutting properties and protection from through traffic.” While this width does not comply with
code, the approval of a substandard width would mean that this is a marginal access street and all streets were
subject to a 20 foot building setback at that time. The decision was made that the plat did note setbacks were
present, code required a minimal 20 foot setback, the plat did not depict a 25 foot setback, the plat note also included
20 foot setbacks on interior lines, and thus we are enforcing a 20 foot setback along GL Hollier Street.

GL Hollier Street is only being used by three lots. One is the lot that the road was created for, the applicant of this
petition, and the owner on the west side of the right-of-way. Due to the width and the usage this is a privately
maintained right-of-way.

The issues along GL Hollier Street were brought to the attention of the KPB Code Compliance Officer. After
discussions with the owners and a field inspections an as-built was ordered by KPB. The as-built did show that
new shop was encroaching into the setback. The owners have been working with the KPB Code Compliance
Officer for a resolution of the situation.

Findings:
1. Lake Estates Subdivision, Plat K-1648, dedicated GL Hollier Street.
2. The Planning Commission allowed the dedication of GL Hollier Street to be only 30 feet wide.
3. GL Hollier Street was created to provide access to a landlocked parcel.

Page 2 of 4
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4. Three lots use GL Hollier Street for access.

5. The plat note states building limits from property lines shall be 20 feet from interior lines and 25 feet from
street frontage.

6. The code at the time required 20 foot setbacks.

7. Current code requires 20 foot setbacks.

8. Setbacks along GL Hollier Street were not depicted due to lack of room.

9. The owners were not aware of the GL Hollier Street setback due to lack of depiction.

10. The shop is slightly angled with the northeast corner being the furthest encroachment into the setback at
9.8 feet into the setback.

11. There does not appear to be any line of sight issues.

12. The road is constructed by privately maintained.

13. Due to the width of the street, improvements, the location of Sports Lake, it does not appear that this right-
of-way will ever serve additional lots.

14. The encroachment is along a straight portion of the right-of-way.

15. There are no terrain issues within the dedication.

20.10.110. — Building setback encroachment permits.
E. The following standards shall be considered for all building setback encroachment permit applications:

1. The building setback encroachment may not interfere with road maintenance.
Findings 10, and 12-15 appear to support this standard.

2. The building setback encroachment may not interfere with sight lines or distances.
Findings 10-15 appear to support this standard.

3. The building setback encroachment may not create a safety hazard.
Findings 10-15 appear to support this standard.

F. The granting of a building setback encroachment permit will only be for the portion of the improvement
or building that is located within the building setback and the permit will be valid for the life of the
structure or for a period of time set by the Planning Commission. The granting of a building setback
permit will not remove any portion of the 20 foot building setback from the parcel.

G. The Planning Commission shall approve or deny a building setback encroachment permit. If approved,
a resolution will be adopted by the planning commission and recorded by the planning department
within the time frame set out in the resolution to complete the permit. The resolution will require an
exhibit drawing showing, and dimensioning, the building setback encroachment permit area. The exhibit
drawing shall be prepared, signed and sealed, by a licensed land surveyor.

KPB department / agency review:
KPB Roads Dept. comments Out of Jurisdiction: No

Roads Director: Uhlin, Dil

Comments: No comments

SOA DOT comments
KPB River Center review A. Floodplain

Reviewer: Carver, Nancy

Floodplain Status: Not within flood hazard area
Comments: No comments

B. Habitat Protection

Reviewer: Carver, Nancy

Habitat Protection District Status: Is NOT within HPD
Comments: No comments

Page 3 of 4
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C. State Parks

Reviewer: Russell, Pam
Comments: No Comments
State of Alaska Fish and Game No objections

Addressing Reviewer: Haws, Derek
Affected Addresses:
36602 GL HOLLIER ST

Existing Street Names are Correct: Yes

List of Correct Street Names:
GL HOLLIER ST
ROSS DR

Existing Street Name Corrections Needed:
All New Street Names are Approved: No
List of Approved Street Names:

List of Street Names Denied:

Comments: 36602 GL HOLLIER ST will remain with lot 10.

Code Compliance Reviewer: Ogren, Eric

Comments: Owner is working with KPB Code Compliance to resolve the new
construction build into the 20 ft set back of GL Hollier. Code compliance is in
agreement to issuing the permit.

Planner Reviewer: Raidmae, Ryan

There are not any Local Option Zoning District issues with this proposed plat.

Material Site Comments:

There are not any material site issues with this proposed plat.
Assessing Reviewer: Windsor, Heather

Comments: No comment

RECOMMENDATION:

Based on the standards to grant a building setback encroachment permit, staff recommends to adopt Resolution
2022-46, subject to compliance with KPB 20.10.110 sections F and G.

NOTE:
20.10.110.(H) A decision of the planning commission may be appealed to the hearing officer by a party of
record, as defined by KPB 20.90, within 15 days of the date of notice of decision in accordance with KPB

21.20.250.

END OF STAFF REPORT

Page 4 of 4
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Kenai Peninsula Borough Planning Department KPB 2022-121
Aerial View 9/28/2022 N

Building Setback Encroachment
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Kenai Peninsula Borough Planning Department KPB File 2022-121 A
Wetlands 9/28/2022 N
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Kenai Peninsula Borough Planning Department KPB File 2022-121 A
Aerial with 5-foot Contours 9/28/2022 N

D

1s y3rinow

300 Feet
[ | | | | | | | |

The information depicted hereon is for a graphical representation only of best available sources. The Kenai Peninsula Borough assumes no responsibility for any errors on this map.

J-24



[

ol




[

D




KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH PLANNING COMMISSION
RESOLUTION 2022-46
KENAI RECORDING DISTRICT

GRANT A BUILDING SETBACK ENCROACHMENT PERMIT TO A PORTION OF THE 20-FOOT BUILDING
SETBACK ADJOINING THE WEST BOUNDARY OF LOT 10, LAKE ESTATES SUBDIVISION (K-1648),
GRANTED BY LAKE ESTATES SUBDIVISION (K-1648); IN SE1/4 NE1/4 SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH,
RANGE 10 WEST, SEWARD MERIDIAN, ALASKA, WITHIN THE KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH. KPB FILE
2022-121.

WHEREAS, per KPB 20.30.240 — Building Setbacks, a minimum 20-foot building setback shall be
required for fee simple non-arterial rights-of-way in subdivisions located outside incorporated cities.

WHEREAS, Nancy and David Whitmore of Soldotna, Alaska requested a building setback permit for a
portion of a shop located on said lot; and

WHEREAS, per the petition, a shop was recently constructed and is located 9.8 feet for a distance of 49
feet within the 20 foot building setback adjoining GL Hollier Street right-of-way;

WHEREAS, the existing building will not obstruct line of sight for traffic; and

WHEREAS, on October 24, 2022, the Kenai Peninsula Borough Planning Commission considered the
background information, all comments received, and recommendations from KPB Planning Department staff
regarding the proposed exception; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission found that granting the building setback permit will not be
detrimental to the public interest; and

WHEREAS, 20.10.110 of the Kenai Peninsula Borough Code of Ordinances authorizes the Planning
Commission to approve building setback permits by Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE KENAI PENINSULA
BOROUGH:

Section 1. Approved a permit to allow only the encroaching portion of the shop that extends 9.8 feet
into the 20 foot building setback adjoining GL Hollier Street right-of-way on the west boundary of Lot 10, Lake
Estates Subdivision, granted by Lake Estates Subdivision (K-1648).

Section 2. That any new, replacement and/or additional construction will be subject to the twenty-foot
building setback limit.

Section 3. That the twenty-foot building setback shall apply to the remainder of said lot.
Section 4. That an exhibit drawing or as-built survey prepared by a licensed land surveyor, showing the
location of the portion of the building setback exception to be granted be attached to and made a part of this

Resolution, becoming page 2 of 2.

Section 5. That this resolution is eligible for recording upon being signed by the Planning Commission
chairperson and will be deemed void if not recorded within 90 days of adoption.

Section 6. That this Resolution becomes effective upon being properly recorded with petitioner being
responsible for payment of recording fee.

ADOPTED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH ON THIS 24th DAY
OF OCTOBER, 2022.

Jeremy Brantley, Chairperson
Planning Commission
ATTEST:

Ann Shirnberg
Administrative Assistant

Return to:
Kenai Peninsula Borough Planning Department
144 North Binkley Street, Soldotna, Alaska 99669

Kenai Peninsula Borough Planning Commission Resolution 2022-46 Page 1 of 2
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]
Planning Department

144 N. Binkley Street, Soldotna, Alaska 99669 ® (907) 714-2200 ® (907) 714-2378 Fax

Mike Navarre
Borough Mayor

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH PLANNING COMMISSION
NOTICE OF BUILDING SETBACK ENCROACHMENT PERMIT

Public notice is hereby given that a building setback encroachment permit application was received on
9/27/2022. You are being sent this notice because you are within 600 feet of the subject parcel and are
invited to comment.

The building setback encroachment permit application is for the following property:

Request / Affected Property: Allows a 9.4 feet by 49 feet portion of a shop to remain in the building
setback granted on Lake Estates Subdivision K-1648.

KPB File No. 2022-121

Petitioner(s) / Land Owner(s): David and Nancy Whitmore of Soldotna, AK.

Purpose as stated in petition: We are requesting a 20’ Building Setback Exception from the KPB Planning
and Platting Department because our garage has been built approximately 10" into the setback for GL
Hollier St, a substandard road. We acknowledge that we are in violation of KPB roads code 14.40.035:
14.40.115. At our meeting with representatives from the Planning and Platting Department on Friday July
22,2022, we were told that the KPB had a surveyor currently surveying 3 parcels in this subdivision, and
that we could use this survey as the As-Built Survey or Site Survey required for the Application for Building
Setback Encroachment Permit. This violation was not intentional; it was a collective error in planning how
to use our lot (Lot 10) to meet our objectives of building a detached garage, a home, and on-site well and
septic systems. The lot is oddly shaped, with poor soils, having the useable area restricted by both Ross
Dr. and GL Hollier St. In discussion with the builder and the excavation company, we were aware of the
required 100" separation between well and septic system (including the wells and septic systems of our
adjacent neighbors). We were unaware of the 20’ road setback for GL Hollier St. as there are no dotted
lines to indicate this on the plat: a road setback is shown on the plat for Ross Dr. Our error was in not
reading the notes on the plat. It appears that the 48’ exception to the road setback will not; 1.not interfere
with road maintenance (road is privately maintained). 2. Not interfere with sight lines or distances.

3. Not create a safety hazard. We appreciate your consideration of this matter.

Building setback encroachment permit reviews are conducted in accordance with KPB Subdivision
Ordinance.

Public hearing will be held by the Kenai Peninsula Borough Planning Commission on Monday, October 24,
2022, commencing at 7:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as business permits. The meeting is being held in
person at the Betty J. Glick Assembly Chambers of the Kenai Peninsula Borough George A. Navarre
Administration Building, 144 N. Binkley Street, Soldotna, Alaska and remotely through Zoom.
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To attend the meeting using Zoom from a computer visit https://us06web.zoom.us/j9077142200. You
may also connect to Zoom by telephone, call toll free 1-888-788-0099 or 1-877-853-5247. If calling in you
will need the Meeting ID of 907 714 2200. Additional information about connecting to the meeting may
be found at https://www.kpb.us/planning-dept/planning-commission.

Anyone wishing to testify may attend the meeting in person or through Zoom. Written testimony may be
submitted by email to planning@kpb.us, or mailed to the attention of Madeleine Quainton, Kenai Peninsula
Borough Planning Department, 144 N. Binkley Street, Soldotna, Alaska 99669. [Written comments may also
be sent by Fax to 907-714-2378]. All written comments or documents must be submitted by 1:00 PM,
Friday, October 21, 2022. The deadline to submit written comments or documents does not impact the
ability to provide verbal testimony at the public hearing.

Additional information such as staff reports and comments are available online. This information is available
the Monday prior to the meeting and found at https://kpb.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx. Use the search
options to find the correct timeframe and committee.

For additional information contact Madeleine Quainton (mquainton@kpb.us) or Julie Hindman
(jhindman@kpb.us), Planning Department, 714-2200 (1-800-478-4441 toll free within Kenai Peninsula
Borough).

Mailed 10/4/2022
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1. A TITLE REPORT WAS NOT PREPARED FOR THIS SURVEY.
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2. BUILDING DIMENSIONS ARE TO THE FACE OF THE BUILDING.
3. BEARINGS AND DISTANCES ARE FROM FIELD MEASUREMENTS AND
PLAT KN 1648.

LEGEND
® FOUND REBAR

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT | HAVE PERFORMED AN
AS—BUILT SURVEY ON THE PROPERTY SHOWN
HEREON, AND THE IMPROVEMENTS EXIST AS SHOWN.
FIELD SURVEY ON 09/26/2022.

09/27/2022
JASON L. SCHOLLENBERG
PLS 14488-S
PENINSULA SURVEYING, LLC
40’ 10535 KATRINA BOULEVARD
> ) NINILCHIK, AK 99639
40 (907)306-7065

AS—BUILT SURVEY
LOT 10, LAKE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
SECTION 21, TSN, R10W, S.M.
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|:| Input parcel(s)

Parcels within 600ft

Parcels within 300 feet
(when applicable).

Notification Report
Wednesday, September 28, 2022

Report generated for KPB Parcel(s):

05725001

The following list was created by applying a 600 ft buffer to the parcel or parcels indicated above. Questions or comments can be relayed to mquainton@kpb.us.

All Ownership Records

PARCEL_ID OWNER ADDRESS CITYy STATE ZIP

05704413 INNES DAVID SCOTT 740 E REDOUBT AVE SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05704414 MARKHAM ERICA 3374 EVALLEJOCT  GILBERT AZ 85298
05704414 MARKHAM MICHAEL 3374 EVALLEJOCT  GILBERT AZ 85298
05704414 MARKHAM MICHELE 3374 EVALLEJOCT  GILBERT AZ 85298
05704414 MARKHAM ZACHARY 3374 EVALLEJOCT  GILBERT AZ 85298
05723007 MILLER FRITZ W & CINDY A 43850 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05723008 GIOVANELLI TERRI L 43732 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05723009 RODGERS CHARLES & JEANETTE 43725 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05724001 TAYLOR AUTUMN R 43680 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05724001 TAYLOR TROY R 43680 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05724002 RODGERS CHARLES & JEANETTE 43725 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05724003 RODGERS CHARLES & JEANETTE 43725 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05724004 MARCOTTE TAMAR G 43625 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05724007 RODGERS CHARLES R & JEANETTE K~ 43725 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05724008 RAWSON JOYCE 43565 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05724008 RAWSON SETH 43565 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05725001 WHITMORE DAVID C PO BOX 881 SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05725001 WHITMORE NANCY PO BOX 881 SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05725002 WALKER DONALD G PO BOX 3161 MONTROSE Cco 81402
05725003 HAWKES BRADFORD JAY 43610 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05725003 HAWKES RENAE SALLY 43610 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05725006 IVERSON JAMES P & HEIDI L 43530 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05725011 IVERSON JAMES P & HEIDI L 43530 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
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PUBLISHER'S AFFIDAVIT

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, }
STATE OF ALASKA SS:

Doug Munn, being first duly sworn, on oath deposes
and says:

That | am and was at all times here in this affidavit
mentions, Supervisor of Legals of the Sound
Publishing / Peninsula Clarion, a newspaper of
general circulation and published at Kenai, Alaska,
that the advertisement, a printed copy of which is
hereto annexed was published in said paper on the
dates listed below:

PC NPH
10/20/22

X‘ \%&WG\\ N
N/ Q' (

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN before me on this

IC in favor f;r,tim/e ‘State of Alaska.

My commission expires 3/6/2024.

Elizabeth A, McDanald
Notary Public, State of Alaska
Cemmission #200306206
My Commission Expires Liarch 6. 2022
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PLANNING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 24, 2022
MEETING MINUTES

[
(o))



October 24, 2022
7:30 P.M.
APPROVED MINUTES

AGENDA ITEM A. CALL TO ORDER
Chair Brantley called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.

AGENDA ITEM B. ROLL CALL

Commissioners Present

Jeremy Brantley, District 5 — Sterling/Funny River
Diane Fikes, City of Kenai

Pamela Gillham, District 1 — Kalifornsky

John Hooper, District 3 — Nikiski

Michael Horton, District 4 — Soldotna

Virginia Morgan, District 6 — East Peninsula
Troy Staggs, City of Seward

Dawson Slaughter, District 9 — South Peninsula
David Stutzer, District 8 - Homer

Charlene Tautfest, City of Soldotna

Franco Venuti, City of Homer

With 11 members of a 12-member seated commission in attendance, a quorum was present.

Staff Present

Robert Ruffner, Planning Director

Walker Steinhage, Deputy Borough Attorney

Vince Piagentini, Platting Manager

Julie Hindman, Platting Specialist

Ann Shirnberg, Planning Administrative Assistant
Rhonda Foster-Deskins, LMD Administrative Assistant.

AGENDA ITEM C. CONSENT & REGULAR AGENDAS

*3. Plats Granted Administrative Approval
a. Arrowhead Estates 2022 Replat; KPB File 2022-001

b. Bryson Subdivision; KPB File 2020-089
c. Kinder Subdivision; KPB File 2021-079
d. Seldovia Townsite East Addn Watson 2021 Replat; KPB File 2021-148
e. Smurfy Acres 2022 Replat; KPB File 2022-080
f.  The Business Center Subd 2022 Replat; KPB File 2022-039
*4, Plats Granted Final Approval

a. Trotter Subdivision Rill River Replat; KPB File 2022-102
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*6. Commissioner Excused Absences

a. Blair Martin — District 2, Kenai

b. City of Seldovia, Vacant

c. District 7 — Central, Vacant
*7. Minutes

a. October 10, 2022 Planning Commission meeting minutes.
Chair Brantley asked Ms. Shirnberg to read the consent agenda items into the record.
Chair Brantley asked if anyone wished to speak to any of the items on the consent agenda.
Hearing no one wishing to comment Chair Brantley brought it back to the commission for a motion.

MOTION: Commissioner Venuti moved, seconded by Commissioner Tautfest to approve the regular and
consent agendas.

Hearing no objection or further discussion, the motion was carried by the following vote:

MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE:
Yes - 11 Brantley, Fikes, Gillham, Horton, Hooper, Morgan, Slaughter, Staggs, Stutzer, Tautfest, Venuti
No-0
Absent-1 | Martin

AGENDA ITEM E. NEW BUSINESS

Chair Brantley asked Ms. Shirnberg to read into the record the procedures for public hearings.

ITEM E1 — BUILDING SETBACK ENCROACHMENT PERMIT
LOT 10, LAKE ESTATES SUBDIVISION (PLAT K-1648)

KPB File No. 2022-121

Planning Commission Meeting:  October 24, 2022

Applicant / Owner: David and Nancy Whitmore of Soldotna, Alaska
Surveyor: Jason Schollenberg / Peninsula Surveying, LLC
General Location: GL Hollier Street, Ridgeway area

Parent Parcel No.: 057-250-01

Lot 10, Lake Estates Subdivision, Plat K-1648, Section 21,
Township 5 North, Range 10 West

Assessing Use: Residential

Zoning: Rural Unrestricted

Legal Description:

Staff report given by Platting Manager Vince Piagentini.
Chair Brantley opened the item for public comment.
Nancy Whitmore, Applicant; P.O. Box 881, Soldotna, AK 99669: Ms. Whitmore is one of the applicants.

She stated that building into the setback was a mistake and that she was sorry that it had happened. She
then made herself available for questions

Commissioner Fikes asked if any of her neighbors have been negatively affected by this mistake. She
wondered if the encroachment would negatively affect road maintenance, particularly for the landowner at
the end of GL Hollier Road. Ms. Whitmore replied that she did not believe so. The neighbor at the end of
GL Hollier Rd. is the one who uses the road the most. She noted that they use their setback to park several
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cars in.

Chair Brantley asked who was the general contractor on this project. Ms. Whitmore replied Eric Arneson
was the general contractor and Steam On Wheels had done the dirt work.

Commissioner Venuti asked how finished was the shed. Ms. Whitmore replied that it was not a shed but a
detached garage/shop. She noted that it was finished on the inside and has power running to it.
Commissioner Venuti then asked when was it built and Ms. Whitmore replied that it was built this last
summer. Commissioner Venuti asked if there was a mortgage on the property, which would require an as-
built, or were they building out of pocket. Ms. Whitmore replied that they were building out of pocket and
that no as-build was done. Commissioner Venuti then asked if their contractor did a survey on the property
before they began building. Ms. Whitmore replied apparently, they did not. The corners of the property
were marked when they purchased the lot.

Troy Taylor; 43680 Ross Drive, Soldotna, AK 99669: Mr. Taylor is a neighboring landowner and spoke in
opposition to this permit. He had contacted the borough regarding his concerns. Mr. Taylor stated he
believed it was brought to his neighbor’s attention, when they put in the concrete slab, that they were
building in the right-of-way. They ignored the warning and continued with the building of their shop. He
also noted that they also built an additional 3’ X 3’ slab next to the shop. He believes that the setback rules
should be followed.

Nancy Whitmore, Applicant; P.O. Box 881, Soldotna, AK 99669: Ms. Whitmore reiterated that they made a
mistake in building in the setback. They were not made aware of the issue until recently. She noted the
dirt work was done for the shop over a year ago. Steam On Wheels built the gravel pad for the shop and
covered it with foam and wire and it sat there over the winter into the spring, right across the road from Mr.
Taylor. Mr. Taylor has never spoken to them directly about his concerns. It was pretty clear where they
were planning to build the shop. She wished Mr. Taylor had spoken to them about his concerns. If he had
spoken to them, they would have corrected the error. They were concerned about 3' X 3’ slab but the
electrician has wired their shop in such a way he said that it was the only location for the generator. Their
contractor has told him if it was necessary, they could move the location for the generator. She noted that
the first time they were made aware of the issue, was when someone from the borough had contacted
them. By then the concrete slab had been installed and the walls for the shop had already gone up.

Commissioner Venuti noted that he has been inspecting new construction projects for the last 30 years and
it is a rare project that gets built out of whack like this. He wonders why their contractor did not build by the
rules, why didn’t he conduct a survey before starting the project. It is his responsibility, as well as yours, to
make sure that he follows the rules. Ms. Whitmore agreed, they were stunned that both the contractor and
their dirt guy didn’t catch this error. It appears no one took a hard look at the plat before they began to
build. They understand that ultimately it is their responsibility and they are sorry. Commissioner Venuti
noted that this is not a new rule, it has been on the books for years. He then stated that he would have a
hard time supporting this request.

Seeing and hearing no one else wishing to comment, public comment was closed and discussion was
opened among the commission.

MOTION: Commissioner Morgan moved, seconded by Commissioner Gillham to adopt PC Resolution
2022-46 granting a building setback encroachment permit to Lot 10, Lake Estates Subdivision, Plat K-1648.

Commissioner Stutzer noted that he has been very vocal in the past about folks not doing their homework
before starting construction, which leads to errors like this. It is still his position that errors like this should
not occur. In this situation he believes there are a couple of mitigating factors. First, the owners have been
very forthright about accepting responsibility for this error. Second, the road that is being talked about here
is basically a driveway and only serves three lots. He noted staff has stated that there are no sightline
issues. The neighbor that spoke in opposition, stating that he has issues with this request, built his home
right on the setback line. They are parking in their setback and have to back on to the road to get away
from their house. This road has been designed in such a way that the borough will not take over the
maintenance, so he doesn’t see any issues there either. This road will be maintained by the neighborhood.
He recognizes that this is a sticky situation, and he understands Commissioner Venuti's comments. He
then stated that he is inclined to support this petition but he does have concerns as well.
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Commissioner Morgan stated that in the end it is the landowner’s responsibility to make sure things like this
don’t happen, but she also noted that landowners have to rely on the expertise of their contractors. She is
very disappointed in the contractor’s lack of research before starting their work.

Commissioner Gillham stated that she agrees with Commissioner Morgan. She also would place most of
the blame in this situation on the contractor. He should have done his homework. She is not concerned
with the neighbors parking in their setback, that area is still a part of their property. The setback code
relates to construction within the setback. She stated that she is inclined to support this request as she
feels that the fault lies mostly with the contractor. The landowners should be able to trust in their expertise.

Chair Brantley noted the testimony from the neighbor inferred that the landowners had built in the right-of-
way. That is not correct, the encroachment is into the setback. The shop is still on the landowner’s
property. He does not see snow removal or road maintenance being affected. He does have some
sympathy for this being an older plat and the setback information not being very visible. Contractors do
make mistakes. The reason he asked who the contractor was, is that he has been on this commission long
enough and likes to see if there is a reoccurring theme with certain contractors that might need to be
addressed. He then stated that he will be supporting this request.

Hearing no objection or further discussion, the motion was carried by the following vote:

MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE:
Yes - 11 Brantley, Fikes, Gillham, Horton, Hooper, Morgan, Slaughter, Staggs, Stutzer, Tautfest, Venuti
No-0
Absent-1 | Martin

ITEM E2 — UTILITY EASEMENT ALTERATION
20-FOOT-WIDE HOMER ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION EASEMENT WITHIN LOTS 2A-1 AND 2B-1 OF
SELDOVIA TOWNSITE EAST ADDITION 2006 REPLAT

KPB File No. 2022-148V

Planning Commission Meeting: October 24, 2022

Applicant / Owner: Jennifer Watson of Anchorage, Alaska
Surveyor:

General Location: City of Seldovia

Staff report given by Platting Manager Vince Piagentini.

Chair Brantley opened the item for public comment. Seeing and hearing no one wishing to comment, public
comment was closed and discussion was opened among the commission.

MOTION: Commissioner Slaughter moved, seconded by Commissioner Morgan to approve the vacation
as petitioned based on the means of evaluating public necessity established by KPB 20.70, subject to staff
recommendations and compliance with borough code.

Hearing no objection or further discussion, the motion was carried by the following vote:

MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE:
Yes - 11 Brantley, Fikes, Gillham, Horton, Hooper, Morgan, Slaughter, Staggs, Stutzer, Tautfest, Venuti
No-0
Absent-1 | Martin

ITEM E3 — RESOLUTION 2022-054
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ACQUISITION OF A PUBLIC ACCESS
EASEMENT FROM THE STATE OF ALASKA FOR WATERMELON TRAIL

Staff report given by Land Management Officer Marcus Mueller.
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Planning Commission Approved Minutes Ortahar 24 2099

Chair Brantley opened the item for public comment. Seeing and hearing no one wishing to comment, public
comment was closed and discussion was opened among the commission.

MOTION: Commissioner Slaughter moved, seconded by Commissioner Gillham to forward to the
Assembly a recommendation to adopt Resolution 2022-054, approving the acquisition of a public access
easement from the State of Alaska for Watermelon Trail.

Hearing no objection or further discussion, the motion was carried by the following vote:

MOTION PASSED BY "'"~'AN"*~US VOTE:
Yes - 11 Brantley, rines, Gmnam, Horton, Hooper, Morgan, Slaughter, Staggs, Stut=~ ™~+~~* Venuli
No-0
Absent * ' Martin

AG ™' "AIT ™" =, PLAT COMMITTEE REPORT

Commissioner Gillham reported the plat committee reviewed eight plats, granted preliminary approval to
seven and postponed action on one.

AGENDA ITEM H. PUBLIC COMMENT/PRESENTATIONS

Chair Brantley asked if there was anyone from the public who would like to comment on anything not
appearing on the agenda. No one wished to comment.

“TENDA ITEM K. ADJOURNMENT

Commissioner Venuti moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:36 PM.
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PROCEEDINGS
0:00:00
(This portion not requested)
5:06

CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: That will bring us
down to item E-1, which is a building setback
encroachment permit, KPB File 2022-121. Staff report
please.

VINCE PIAGENTINI: Item 1, Building
Setback Encroachment Permit, Lot 10, Lake Estates
Subdivision, Plat K-1648, KPB File 2022-121. General
location is GL Hollier Street in Ridgeway area. The
parent parcel number is 057-250-01. Again, Lake Lot
10, Lake Estates Subdivision.

This is a -- we are requesting a 20-foot
building setback exception from the KPB planning and
platting department because our garage has been built
approximately 10 feet into the setback for GL Hollier
Street, a substandard road.

We acknowledge that we are in violation
of KPB Roads Code 14-40-035 and 14-40-15 -- 115. This
violation was not intentional. It was a collective
error in planning, how we used our lot, our objections
of building a detached garage, a home, and onsite well
and septic systems. The lot is oddly shaped with poor
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northern end. The area in question is along a
straight portion of the right-of-way and located on
the side with the outside of the curve and should not
cause any sight issues.

Staff analysis: Lake Estates
Subdivision, Plat K-1648 was recorded in 1969. The
plat dedicated Ross Drive and GL Hollier Street,
unnamed on the plat. GL Hollier Street was granted as
a 30-foot-wide right-of-way to provide access to a
landlocked parcel, Government Lot 10, that was noted
as being the Hollier property.

The issues were brought to the attention
of the KPB code compliance, and they have been working
with the owners on a resolution for the issue. The
plat clearly shows a 25-foot building setback along
Ross Drive and a depiction -- with a depiction and a
label. A depiction of any type of setback was not
shown along GL Hollier Street.

The plat did not have -- did have a plat
note stating the setback from the street frontage was
to be 25 feet. The Kenai Peninsula Borough Legal
Department reviewed the code that was in place when
the plat was approved. The plat -- the width that was
granted did not fit that -- the width for any of the
types of roads defined in code. For the staff report,

©O© 0N O h~WDNPRP

NNNNNNRERRERRR R B B
O RWNREPROOO®O®NOOUMWNLEO

Page 3

soils, having the usable area restricted to both Ross
Drive and GL Hollier Street. Excuse me.

In discussion with the builder and the
excavation company, we were aware of the required
100-foot separation between well and septic system,
including the wells and septic system of our adjacent
neighbors. We were unaware of the 20-foot road
setback for GL Hollier Street as there are no dotted
lines to indicate this on the plat.

A road setback is shown on the plat for
Ross Drive. Our error was in not reading the notes on
the plat. It appears that a 48-foot exception to the
road setback will not (1) interfere with road
maintenance, the road is privately maintained; (2) not
interfere with sight lines or distance; (3) not create
a safety hazard. We appreciate your consideration in
this matter.

On the site investigation, the request
is to be granted a permit for a 49-foot by 24-foot
shed along GL Hollier Street. The building encroaches
9.8 feet for the length of 49 feet, and is slightly
angled to 9.3 feet at the southwest corner of the
shed.

The sight distances do not appear to be
impacted. GL Hollier Street does have a curve on the
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it appears an exception to width was granted.

This right-of-way fits the dedication of
marginal access streets from the 1968 KPB code. The
definition as states: Minor streets, which are
parallel with and adjacent to arterial streets and
highways, and which provide access to abutting
properties and protection from through traffic.

While this width does not comply with
code, the approval of a substandard width would mean
that this is a marginal access street, and all streets
were subject to a 20-foot building setback at that
time. The dedication was made that the plat did note
setbacks were present. Code required a minimal
20-foot setback.

The plat did not depict a 25-foot
setback. The plat note also indicated 20-foot
setbacks on interior lines, and thus we are enforcing
a 20-foot setback along GL Hollier Street.

GL Hollier Street is only being used by
three lots. One is the lot that the road was created
for, the applicant of this petition, and the owner on
the west side of the right-of-way. Due to the width
and the usage, this is a privately maintained
right-of-way.

The issues along GL Hollier Street were

Peninsula Reporting
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KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH
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Page 8

1 brought to the attention of the KPB code compliance 1 don't know. We haven't been there for a winter, but
2 officer. The as-built did show that the new shop was 2 it seems pretty wide with their 20-foot setback and
3 encroached into the setback. The owners have been 3 our 10-foot setback and the 30 feet of road.
4 working with the KPB code compliance officer for a 4 And, again, it's just the three -- the
5 resolution of the situation. There were some findings 5 three homes.
6 listed, and findings 10, 12 through 15 appear to 6 COMMISSIONER FIKES: Okay. Thanks.
7 support the standards. 7 CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Is there any more
8 So the recommendation is based on the 8 questions for the applicant? | had one.
9 standards to grant a building setback encroachment 9 Who was the general contractor?
10 permit. Staff recommends to adopt Resolution 2022-46, |10 COMMISSIONER VENUTI: Mr. Chair. | have
11 subject to compliance with KPB Code 20.10.110, 11 questions.
12 sections F and G. 12 CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Okay. We'll get
13 End of staff report. 13 right to you, Commissioner Venuti.
14 CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Thank you. Is the 14 Oh, yeah, who were the general
15 petitioner or applicant here to speak on this matter? 15 contractors?
16 Okay. Can you just come forward to the mike -- and 16 COMMISSIONER VENUTI: | said | have a
17 we'll turn it on for you -- and state your name and 17 question.
18 address for the record, please. 18 NANCY WHITMORE: Who was the general
19 NANCY WHITMORE: My name is Nancy 19 contractor?
20 Whitmore. This is Craig. Our address is 36602 GL 20 CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Yeah.
21 Hollier. We have a home under construction there, and 21 NANCY WHITMORE: It's Eric Arneson.
22 | just came to see if you had any questions that | 22 CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Okay.
23 could answer. 23 NANCY WHITMORE: And we had the dirt
24 CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Are there any 24 work done by Steam On Wheels.
25 questions for the applicant? 25 CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Okay. Commissioner
Page 7 Page 9
1 COMMISSIONER FIKES: This is one of 1 Venuti, go ahead.
2 three homes that are accessed off of GL Hollier. Are 2 COMMISSIONER VENUTI: Yes, | have a
3 you aware of how your other neighbors -- are they 3 question for the applicant.
4 related or unrelated? Is this going to impact them in 4 This is referred to as a shed. How
5 any way? 5 finished is it on the inside?
6 NANCY WHITMORE: | don't believe it 6 NANCY WHITMORE: It's not a shed. It's
7 would impact them. The neighbor who was landlocked is | 7 a detached garage-shop, and it's finished on the
8 atthe end of the road. There's a curve, and they use 8 inside with OSB and painted with a primer. It has
9 the road the most to get to their property. The 9 power.
10 neighbor across the street from us has -- they have 10 COMMISSIONER VENUTI: And when was this
11 their 20-foot setback, and they park -- they park this 11 built?
12 way in it, and they have quite a few vehicles. So 12 NANCY WHITMORE: It --
13 they use their -- 13 COMMISSIONER VENUTI: And when was this
14 COMMISSIONER FIKES: So my concern is 14 built?
15 that's really tight, and it's not to code, and so it's 15 NANCY WHITMORE: It was built this
16 also not maintained, so | would be concerned about 16 summer.
17 snow removal if that setback is already going to be 17 COMMISSIONER VENUTI: Did you say this
18 encroached 10 feet. 18 summer?
19 Is that loss of road maintenance area, 19 NANCY WHITMORE: Yeah, this summer.
20 is that going to be impacting the person's access to 20 COMMISSIONER VENUTI: Is this part of a
21 the back land lock? 21 mortgage, or did you guys build this out of pocket?
22 NANCY WHITMORE: | don't think so. | 22 NANCY WHITMORE: We built it out of
23 would think the snow being pushed would probably be 23 pocket.
24 pushed from the farthest point of the road out toward 24 COMMISSIONER VENUTI: So there was no
25 Ross and maybe even across Ross. | don't -- | mean, | 25 requirement that you produce an as-built when you were
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done?

NANCY WHITMORE: Correct.

COMMISSIONER VENUTI: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Commissioner
Stutzer, go ahead.

COMMISSIONER STUTZER: Yeah, thank you.
I have a question.

So is this the first building on the
property, and you're going to build a house?

NANCY WHITMORE: There's -- a house has
been -- being built also during the summer, and it's
just now getting what | refer to as buttoned up.

COMMISSIONER STUTZER: On Lot 10?

NANCY WHITMORE: On Lot 10.

COMMISSIONER STUTZER: Yeah. So -- and
maybe you can answer this, but our photo, the
satellite photo shows there's -- from the Lot 11
there's some buildings or something, | can't tell what
they are, that are actually on Lot 10. And, | don't
know, maybe that's just a poor satellite picture, but
| was just curious.

So you're building on Lot 10? That was
my question.

NANCY WHITMORE: Yes, we're building on
Lot 10. And as you can see, it's a very oddly shaped
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: --- going to be
accessed off of Hollier?

NANCY WHITMORE: We -- the garage-shop
has a garage door on the Ross side, and it has a
garage door at the end -- at the -- on the GL Hollier
side for a smaller vehicle. So we're trying to access
that building from the side off GL Hollier and from
the end off Ross.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: So if your home
is being constructed underneath the "10" on our maps,
you're going to be coming into your home off of Ross?

NANCY WHITMORE: Yeah, we do. A lot of
the traffic goes in off of Ross. That's all been
cleared and hardened up there to the right of the
shop.

CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Yeah, Commissioner
Venuti, go ahead.

COMMISSIONER VENUTI: Yes, another
question for the applicant. Are you building this out
of pocket, or do you have a contractor working with
you?

NANCY WHITMORE: We have a contractor,
and we are so far building it out of pocket.

COMMISSIONER VENUTI: Did the contractor
survey the lot before he started?

©O© 0N O h~WDNPRP

NNNNNNRERRERRR R B B
O RWNREPROOO®O®NOOUMWNLEO

Page 11

lot.

COMMISSIONER STUTZER: Yes.

NANCY WHITMORE: It's very narrow at the
front and much wider at the other end.

COMMISSIONER STUTZER: And where is the
house going to be? | mean, where is it -- you said
it's already --

NANCY WHITMORE: Yeah. The house is
where the -- if you have the same map | have, where it
says "Lot 10," that's about where the house is.

COMMISSIONER STUTZER: About -- okay.
Where the "10" is, okay. Okay, very good.

NANCY WHITMORE: Yeah. We wanted -- we
wanted the house to be closer -- farther away from
Ross, but there's a -- it's sort of wet down there,
and it's a slope, and so we ended up kind of putting
it in the middle.

COMMISSIONER STUTZER: Yeah, gotcha.
Okay, thank you.

NANCY WHITMORE: Uh-huh.

CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Any more
commissioner questions for the applicant?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: So is your
driveway --

COMMISSIONER VENUTI: Yes.
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NANCY WHITMORE: Apparently not. We had
the corners marked when we purchased the lot, and that
was the extent of any survey before we started the
process.

COMMISSIONER VENUTI: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Are there any more
questions? All righty. Thank you very much.

NANCY WHITMORE: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Are there any public
comments on this matter?

TROY TAYLOR: Yeah, hi, this is Troy
Taylor. Can you hear me?

CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Sorry. Yeah, go
ahead and state your name and your address for the
record, please.

TROY TAYLOR: Yeah, my name is Troy
Taylor. Address is 43680 Ross Drive. We are located
across the street on GL Hollier. We are one of the
three residents on GL Hollier.

Yeah, we have actually had many concerns
with this. And it's been brought up to the
attention -- as soon as this build was being done, we
brought it to the attention of the borough, because we
had a pretty good idea that they were overbuilt over
the line when they first started building that shop.
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1 So we brought it to the attention. 1 Wheels about repairing that, since all this
2 The borough had come out, and under our 2 construction has been done, to put it back the way
3 understanding, this job was postponed for a couple 3 that it was since | did pay for it out of my own
4 days. It was pretty much stopped, and then they 4 pocket.
5 started building again where at this point all they 5 | believe that, you know, all these
6 had was a concrete slab. There was no walls up or 6 rules and regulations for setbacks and covenants, all
7 nothing. And then they continued to build knowing 7 that other stuff, are set for people to follow, you
8 that they were over the line. 8 know. We just built our house approximately four
9 And now that the shop is completely 9 years ago. February it will be four years that we've
10 built, since then they have also built a concrete slab 10 been in that house, and we did our surveying. We did
11 off the side of the shop. | would estimate it about a 11 our homework. We did everything that we were supposed
12 3-foot-by-5-foot concrete slab on the GL Hollier side 12 to do to make sure that we were off of that 20-foot
13 for a generator as well. So the building is 9.4 feet 13 setback, and we are.
14 with an addition to another 3 feet added onto that 14 So, you know, | think it's just a matter
15 thatis actually out in the right-of-way as well. 15 of overbuilding on the lot. And like | said, they
16 Clearing the snow down through there -- 16 were very well aware of it before they completed this
17 like, itis not -- yes, it's not a borough-maintained 17 build of this shop, and they continued to proceed. We
18 road, which 75 percent of the snow clearing on this 18 had made plenty of phone calls to the borough. I've
19 road | do myself, and we are not going to -- it was 19 talked to numerous --
20 stated of possibly pushing show across Ross Drive. 20 CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: I'm sorry. Your
21 Well, as we know, we're not supposed to push snow 21 time limit has gone up. So if you could just
22 across a borough-maintained road and fill up the road 22 finish --
23 and leave it up to the borough maintenance to take 23 TROY TAYLOR: Okay. Well --
24 care of. The snow is supposed to be cleared off to 24 CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: -- your sentence
25 the sides and not pushing snow across traffic and 25 here.
Page 15 Page 17
1 impeding traffic as well. So this does limit room for 1 MR. TAYLOR: | appreciate everybody's
2 snow removal as well with them being 10 feet -- 2 time. And | just believe that there was other ways of
3 approximately 10 to 12 feet with that pad off the side 3 accomplishing what they needed, what they wanted over
4 of the shop. 4 there. And that's all | have. Thank you.
5 Us -- and when we built -- | understand 5 CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Thank you. Are
6 when they're building impeding traffic on GL Hollier, 6 there any questions for the testifier?
7 1did not have a problem with it at the time, but it 7 All right. | don't see any hands
8 has also limited us as far as backing out away from 8 raised, so thank you.
9 our house. And especially when vehicles are parked 9 TROY TAYLOR: Thank you.
10 alongside the shop, which over time there has been 10 CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Is there anyone else
11 times where I've had to go out and ask people to move 11 from the general public wishing to comment on this?
12 their vehicles because | cannot even turn around in 12 Okay. Seeing none, we will close public comment.
13 front of my house. | would have to back out into live 13 The petitioner and applicant, you do
14 traffic of Ross Drive. 14 have the opportunity to speak again if you'd like to.
15 So | think there was other ways of 15 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Just push the
16 accomplishing what they wanted built over there 16 button on the (indiscernible).
17 without impeding into the right-of-way. For one, a 17 NANCY WHITMORE: Thanks, whoever. Thank
18 smaller shop could have been done. The house could 18 you.
19 have been built a little closer to the lake. The shop 19 Like we said in our comment that we
20 could have been pushed back off the line and still had 20 wrote, it was inadvertent. We didn't know about it.
21 plenty of room. 21 We had that -- a lot of the dirt work was done a year
22 I have also upgraded that GL Hollier 22 ago in the fall, and we had marked out the area for
23 Road out of my own pocket, put material on it, put rap 23 the shop with stakes. And Steam On Wheels had built
24 onitto keep dust and everything down, which | have 24 the pad, the dirt pad, the gravel pad, and we had

N
ol

been in contact with the builder and with Steam On

25

covered it with foam and wire, and it had sat there
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1 all winter across the road from the neighbors who 1 were told that at that point in time there wasn't
2 apparently now are -- have never expressed a concern 2 really enough information to have us do that, and so
3 to us personally about this. 3 we -- our contractor continued on with the building.
4 And so they -- they were -- they were 4 I'm not sure what we would have done at
5 aware of where we were planning to pour the slab and 5 that point, but -- | don't really know what else to
6 build the garage through the whole course of the 6 say. I'm sorry the neighbors aren't happy. They, you
7 winter and into the spring when the snow melted. 7 know, they use their 20-foot setback to park multiple
8 So | really wish they would have 8 vehicles and recreational equipment along there so,
9 approached us and said something, because we certainly | 9 you know, it's -- that's -- | don't know what to say
10 would have made it right. You know, we're not -- 10 about that other than we're not going to use the 10
11 we're not trying to violate anything. We're trying to 11 feet that we have left, but we have taken the 10 feet
12 just use that shape of that oddly shaped lot with the 12 with our building, not intentionally.
13 limitations we have for the neighboring wells and 13 But I guess at this point, | mean, it is
14 septics and our well and septic. We're trying to put 14 whatitis. So | don't know what else to say about
15 three of those systems along that area of Ross there 15 that. Are there -- anyone else have questions?
16 and very -- and our area is very small. So it 16 CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Commissioner Venulti,
17 certainly wasn't on purpose. 17 go ahead.
18 We have no intention of parking on the 18 If you're speaking, we can't hear you.
19 GL Hollier side of our shop. | do know that some of 19 COMMISSIONER VENUTI: Excuse me, |
20 our construction workers have parked there, and we've 20 was -- excuse me, | was muted.
21 encouraged them not to do that. | also know that our 21 | understand how a person can make a
22 neighbors has guests who park there, which we're not 22 mistake, but understand I'm looking at this from the
23 thrilled about, but we haven't done anything or said 23 viewpoint of somebody who's been a -- I've been
24 anything about that. Like | said, it's not our 24 inspecting new construction projects for the last 30
25 intention. We won't be putting things out there. 25 years. And it's a very rare project that gets built
Page 19 Page 21
1 The additional 3-by-5-foot concrete pad 1 out of whack like this.
2 that went there was a concern to us, and the issue is 2 | understand you have -- you had a
3 that our electrician had wired the shop for that 3 contractor do this, but why didn't the contractor pay
4 generator to be there, and we expressed concern about 4 attention to the rules? It's his responsibility as
5 that location for this reason. And we were told by 5 well as yours.
6 our contractor that they can -- well, the electrician 6 NANCY WHITMORE: Well, you know, our
7 said that he needed to put it there to start, and the 7 first reaction was, wow, there's a contractor and a
8 contractor said if we need to move it, he can. It's a 8 dirt guy. And, you know, | think everyone took a look
9 small enough concrete pad he can pick it up with his 9 at the plat, but without the dotted line there to say
10 forklift and move it to the -- around the corner to 10 thisis a setback, no one -- you know, no one really
11 the other side of the shop. 11 took a hard enough look at it. And, you know, we
12 So that was sort of done, again, with 12 were -- it was suggested that we bring them along with
13 our contractor and our electrician and not really with 13 us tonight, but ultimately it's our responsibility.
14 our permission, | guess, is what | want to say. 14 So | don't know what else to say.
15 Obviously, we feel really badly about 15 COMMISSIONER VENUTI: Well, it's not a
16 this and wish we could go back in time and make it 16 brand new road. It's been on the books for quite a
17 right. 17 while. It would be really hard for me to support
18 The initial concern that we were too 18 this.
19 close when the slab was poured and the walls were 19 CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Any more questions
20 under construction, the walls were up when we got a 20 for the testifier?
21 phone call from the borough, someone at the borough 21 All right. At this point, I'll close
22 saying that this was an issue. We were actually in 22 public testimony and bring it back to the commission
23 Haines Junction coming up the highway and, you know, |23 for a motion.
24 had to wait until we could get to a place with cell 24 COMMISSIONER MORGAN: I move to adopt PC
25 reception and asked if we needed to stop work, and 25 Resolution 2022-46 -- is that correct, Dan -- granting
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a building setback encroachment permit to Lot 10, Lake
Estates Subdivision, Plat K-1648.

COMMISSIONER GILLHAM: Second that
motion.

CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: We have a motion and
a second. Is there any discussion? Okay.
Commissioner Stutzer, go ahead.

COMMISSIONER STUTZER: Yes, thank you.

So in the past on this board, or this
commission, I'm usually very vocal about being
against, you know, not doing their homework and that
kind of thing, which is basically my -- still my
position, but there's a couple, well, for me,
mitigating factors.

One, | mean, they're very forthright.

They made a mistake. They're -- you know, they're
fairly early on in the project, granted, that the shop
is built.

But the road that we're talking about is
basically a driveway, right? And my inclination is to
say yeah. And there's no sight lines, as staff said,
sight lines being disturbed. It only accesses three
lots.

The one testifier, the neighbor, said,
you know, he has a problem with it, but they built
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there is a -- if there's a problem with snow removal,
could they put a cul-de-sac shared between all three
of the lots to gain the -- to gain the dimensions? Go
to the northwest lot that -- | don't have a number on
it here, but we got 9, 10, and the northwest lot, and
if they all three was to make a cul-de-sac there, then
that would give them maybe somewhere to put the snow
if it's needed, if that's their concern, | suppose.
And, yeah, just as he had said, the
people parking in the -- they're parking in the
setback, so, like, that's the same thing. They can't
really complain about it. That's all | had.
CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Thank you.
Commissioner Morgan.
COMMISSIONER MORGAN: | am also inclined
to support this. | think | have a bigger frustration
with two contractors in the area who should know all
of this. It is a homeowner's job to do research, but
we also depend on our contractors to know their
business. And so I'm kind of disappointed in their
lack of researching before they started the work and
not getting good information to the homeowners.
COMMISSIONER GILLHAM: | would have to
concur with Commissioner Morgan in that | would put
most of the blame on the contractor who should have a
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their house, it looks like by the map, right on the
20-foot setback line. So basically they're parking in
their setback, and they have to back into the driveway
just to get out of -- away from their house.

So, you know, | don't have a lot of
sympathy for them, because they kind of built the
house that way. So -- and, yeah, you've got a
neighbor now and a building there and snow removal is
a problem, but, you know, the road is always going to
be -- was designed not -- that the borough is not
going to take it over. So it's going to be a
neighborhood snowplow operation, and you'll just have
to figure out where you're going to push the snow.

I mean, there's -- to me, by the map, it
looks like you can push it on the neighbor's property
further up around the curve. You know, | mean,
granted, you know, | don't want to design solutions
for you.

But I don't know, it's a sticky
situation. I'minclined to -- | mean, | hear what
Franco is saying. I'm inclined to approve this
petition, but | do have some concerns. So thank you.

CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Thank you,
Commission Stutzer. Any more discussion?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: | was thinking if
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little bit more knowledge on this than the homeowner.

I'm not too concerned about parking in
the setback. That's still part of the property
owner's property. The setback is for building, not
parking. So that -- they should be able to pretty
much do with that whatever they choose as long as
they're not building in it.

But | am inclined to vote in favor of
this, mostly because | feel that this is more due to
the contractor's fault rather than the property
owner's fault.

CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Any more discussion
before we take a vote?

Well, I'll just say during some of the
testimony | think some terms got jumbled, and just to
remind the commissioners that it was inferred that
they were building into the right-of-way. | think one
of the -- the neighbor testified to that. And just to
remind you, this is not -- they are still on their
property by 10 feet or so.

They are not out in the right-of-way at
all, so | don't see how snow removal would be affected
anyway since they're not encroaching in the
right-of-way at all, just in the setback.

| do have some sympathy with the plat,
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1 an older plat and it not being very visible.
2 Contractors make mistakes. The only reason | asked
3 for the name was just to -- we've been on this
4 commission long enough that | kind of like to know who
5 did it, because there might be a recurring theme that
6 develops over time that could be addressed, but |
7 do -- these things do happen, and | will be voting in
8 favor to support this.
9 So if there's no more testimony, Ann --

10 or no more discussion -- we'll take a vote.

11 MS. SHIRNBERG: Gillham?

12 COMMISSIONER GILLHAM: Yes.

13 MS. SHIRNBERG: Hooper?

14 COMMISSIONER HOOPER: Yes.

15 MS. SHIRNBERG: Stutzer?

16 COMMISSIONER STUTZER: Yes.

17 MS. SHIRNBERG: Staggs?

18 COMMISSIONER STAGGS: Yes.

19 MS. SHIRNBERG: Slaughter?

20 COMMISSIONER SLAUGHTER: Yes.

21 MS. SHIRNBERG: Fikes?

22 COMMISSIONER FIKES: Yes.

23 MS. SHIRNBERG: Morgan?

24 COMMISSIONER MORGAN: Yes.

25 MS. SHIRNBERG: Horton?

Page 27

1 COMMISSIONER HORTON: Yes.
2 MS. SHIRNBERG: Tautfest?
3 COMMISSIONER TAUTFEST: Yes.
4 MS. SHIRNBERG: Venuti?
5 COMMISSIONER VENUTI: I'll say this very
6 slowly. Yes.
7 MS. SHIRNBERG: Brantley?
8 CHAIRMAN BRANTLEY: Yes.
9 The motion passes unanimously.

10 39:17

11 (This portion not requested)

12 1:09:36

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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CERTI FI CATE
Di PAOLO, Regi stered Professional
Certified Realtine Reporter, Certified CART
and Notary Public in and for the State of

I, LEONARD J.
Reporter,
Provi der,
Al aska, do hereby certify:

That the tape recording, PC 102422 Audi o was
transcribed under ny direction by conputer
transcription; that the foregoing is a true record of
the testinony and proceedings taken at that tinme to the
best of ny ability; and that | amnot a party to nor
have | any interest in the outcone of the action herein
cont ai ned.

I'N W TNESS WHERECF,
hand and affixed ny seal this 24th day of Novenber,

2022.

| have hereunto set ny

LEONARD J. Di PAOLO, RPR, CRR, CCP
Notary Public for Al aska
My Commi ssion Expires: 2-3-2024
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Apparently (2) Borough (8)
A 13:1;18:2 4:21;13:23;14:2,23;
appear (2) 16:18;19:21,21;23:10
able (1) 3:24,6:6 borough-maintained (2)
25:5 appears (2) 14:17,22
abutting (1) 312,511 both (1)
5:6 applicant (8) 31
access (6) 5:21;6:15,25;8:8; brand (1)
4:9:5:3,6,10:7:20; 9:3;11:22;12:19;17:13 21:16
12:6 appr eciate (2) BRANTLEY (26)
accessed (2) 3:16;17:1 2:5,6:14,24;8:7,12,
7:2:12:2 approached (1) 20,22,25;10:4;11:21;
accesses (1) 18:9 12:16;13:6,9,13;16:20,
22:22 approval (1) 24;17:5,10;20:16;
accomplishing (2) 5:9 21:19,22:5,23:23;
15:16;17:3 approve (1) 24:13;25:12;27:7,8
acknowledge (1) 2321 bring (3)
2:20 approved (1) 2:5,21:12,22
across (7) 423 brought (5)
7:10,25:13:18; approximately (3) 4:12;6:1;13:21,23;
14:20,22,25;18:1 2:18;15:3;16:8 ;4:1
actually (4) area (8) build (6)
10:19;13:20;14:15; 2:12,3:1,4:1,7:19; 9:21;10:9;13:22;
19:22 17:22;18:15,16;24:17 14:7,16:17;18:6
added (1) Arneson (1) builder (2)
14:14 821 3:3;15:25
addition (1) around (3) building (25)
14:14 15:12;19:10;23:16 2:6,9,16,24;3:20;
additional (1) arterial (1) 4:15,5:11;6:9;10:8,22,
19:1 5:5 24,12:7,19,23,13:25;
address (4) as-built (2) 14:5,13;15:6;20:3,12;
6:18,20;13:14,17 6:2,9:25 22:1;23:8,25:4,7,17
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12:25;13:3,25;14:5;
24:21

state (2)
6:17;13:14

stated (1)
14:20

states (1)
54

stating (1)
4.20
Steam (3)
8:24;15:25;17.23
sticky (1)
23:19
still (4)
15:20;22:12;25:3,19
stop (1)
19:25
stopped (1)
14:4
straight (1)
4.2
Street (16)
2:12,19;3:2,8,20,25;
4:7,8,18,20;5:10,18,19,
25;7:10;13:18
streets (4)
5:3,4,5,10
stuff (1)
16:7
Stutzer (13)
10:5,6,13,15;11:2,5,
11,18;22:7,8;23:24;
26:15,16
Subdivision (4)
2:11,14;,4:6;22:2
subject (2)
511;6:11
substandard (2)
2:19;5:9
suggested (1)
21:12
summer (4)
9:16,18,19;10:11
support (4)
6:7;21:17;24:16;
26:8
suppose (1)
24:8
supposed (3)
14:21,24;16:11
sure (2)
16:12;20:4
survey (2)
12:25;13:3
surveying (1)
16:10

sympathy (2)
23:6;25:25

system (2)
35,6

systems (2) 4:25 22:10
2:25;18:15 vote (3)

) 25:8,13;26:10
T voting (1)
ultimately (1) 26:7

talked (2) 21:13
16:19 unanimously (1) W

talking (2) 27:9
22:19 unaware (1) wait (1)

Tautfest (2) 37 19:24
27:2,3 under (3) walls (3)

TAYLOR (7) 6:21;14:2;19:20 14:6;19:19,20
13:11,12,16,17; underneath (1) way (4)
16:23;17:1,9 12:10 7:5,12;16:2;23:7

terms (1) UNIDENTIFIED (5) ways (2)

25:15 11:23;12:1,9;17:15; 15:15;17:2

testified (1) 23:25 wells (2)

25:18 unnamed (1) 3:6;18:13

testifier (3) 4:8 west (1)
17:6;21:20;22:24 unrelated (1) 5:22

testimony (3) 74 wet (1)
21:22,25:15;26:9 up (12) 11:15

Thanks (2) 10:12;11:16;12:14; whack (1)
8:6;17:17 13:21;14:6,22,23, 21:1

theme (1) 16:21;19:9,20,23; Wheels (3)

26:5 23:16 8:24;16:1;17:23

thinking (1) upgraded (1) WHITMORE (27)
23:25 15:22 6:19,20;7:6,22;8:18,

three (9) usable (1) 21,23,9:6,12,15,19,22;
5:20;7:2;8:4,5; 31 10:2,10,14,24;11:3,8,
13:19;18:15;22:22; usage (1) 13,20;12:3,12,22;13:1,
24:2,6 5:23 8;17:17;21:6

thrilled (1) use (5) whole (1)

18:23 7:8,13;18:12;20:7, 18:6
thus (1) 10 who's (1)
5:17 used (2) 20:23
tight (1) 2:23;5:19 wide (1)
7:15 usually (1) 8:2
times (1) 22:10 wider (1)
15:11 11:4

told (2) V width (6)
19:5;20:1 4:23,24;5:1,8,9,22

tonight (1) vehicle (1) winter (3)

21:13 12:6 8:1,18:1,7

took (2) vehicles (4) wire (1)
21:8,11 7:12;15:9,12;20:8 17:25

toward (1) VENUTI (21) wired (1)
7:24 8:10,13,16;9:1,2,10, 19:3

traffic (6) 13,17,20,24;10:3; wish (2)
5:7;12:13;14:25; 11:25;12:17,18,24; 18:8;19:16
15:1,6,14 13:5;20:16,19;21:15; | wishing (1)

Troy (6) 27:45 17:11
13:11,11,16,16; viewpoint (1) without (2)
16:23;17:9 20:23 15:17;21:9

trying (4) VINCE (1) work (4)
12:6;18:11,11,14 2.9 8:24;17:21;19:25;

turn (2) violate (1) 24:21
6:17;15:12 18:11 workers (1)

two (1) violation (2) 18:20
24:17 2:20,22 working (3)

type (1) visible (1) 4:13;6:4;12:20
4:17 26:1 wow (1)

types (1) vocal (1) 21:7

Peninsula Reporting

110 Trading Bay Dr., Ste. 100, Kenai, AK 99611 907/283-4429
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KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH
PLANNING COMMISSION

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS - EXCERPT

October 24, 2022

wrote (1) 20:7;23:2
17:20 24-foot (1)
3:19
Y 25(1)
4:21
year (1) 25-foot (2)
17:21 4:15;5:15
years(3)
16:9,9:20:25 3
0 32
3:15;14:14
0:00:00 (1) 30(2)
2:2 8:3;20:24
057-250-01 (1) 30-foot-wide (1)
2:13 4.9
36602 (1)
1 6:20
39:17 (1)
12 27:10
2:9;3:13 3-by-5-foot (1)
1:09:36 (1) 1911
27:12 3-foot-by-5-foot (1)
10 (22) 14:12
2:10,14,18;4:10;6:6;
7:18;10:13,14,19,22, 4
25;11:10,12;12:10;
15:2,3;20:10,11;22:1; | 43680 (1)
24:5;25:20 13:17
100-foot (1) 48-foot (1)
35 312
10-foot (1) 49 (1)
8:3 321
11(2) 49-foot (1)
10:17 3:19
115 (1)
2:21 5
12 (2)
6:6;15:3 5:06 (1)
14-40-035 (1) 2:4
2:21
14-40-15 (1) 7
2:21
15(2) 75 (1)
6.6 14:18
1968 (1)
5:3 9
1969 (1)
4:6 9(D
24:5
2 9.3(1)
3:22
2D 9.4 (1)
314 14:13
20.10.110 (1) 9.8(1)
6:11 321
2022-121 (2)
2:7,11
2022-46 (2)
6:10;21:25
20-foot (11)
2:15;3:7;5:11,14,16,

18;7:11;8:2;16:12;

Peninsula Reporting
110 Trading Bay Dr., Ste. 100, Kenai, AK 99611 907/283-4429
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ADDENDUM INDEX

Record Page # Document
R-34 to R-35 Submittal
R-36 Justification
R-37 to R-38 Email 07-19-22 (2)
R-39 to R-41 Email 07-19-22
R-42 to R-42 Email 07-26-22
R-43 Application
R-44 to R-45 Email 07-28-22
R-46 to R-51 Email 09-27-22
R-52 Asbuilt Lot 10 — 36602 GL Hollier St.
R-53 to R-54 Email 10-07-22
R-55 to R-58 Public Notice
R-59 Asbuilt for Recording
R-60 To R-83 Ordinance 68-62
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July 25, 2022

We are requesting a 20’ Building Setback Exception from the KPB Planning and Platting Department

B T B B T T B T o e T PR

Setback Encroachment Permit.
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the notes on the plat.

We appreciate your consideration of this matter.
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Hindman, Julie

From: Hindman, Julie

Sent: Tuesday, February 28, 2023 3:00 PM

To: Hindman, Julie

Subject: FW: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Questions re application for variance - Whitmore

From: Ogren, Eric <eogren@kpb.us>

Sent: Tuesday, July 19, 2022 10:59 AM

To: 'Nancy Whitmore' <nancywhitmore@gmail.com>

Cc: Hindman, Julie <jhindman@kpb.us>; Quainton, Madeleine <mquainton@kpb.us>
Subject: RE: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Questions re application for variance - Whitmore

Hello Nancy,

Email is a good method to communicate for me as well. We can meet and | can include the platting staff as well, as they
are the experts. Do you have a date and time in mind, to meet?

Eric D. Ogren

Code Compliance Officer
Ph: (907) 714-2209

Fx: (907) 714-2378

From: Nancy Whitmore <nancywhitmore@gmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, July 19, 2022 9:35 AM

To: Ogren, Eric <eogren@kpb.us>

Subject: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Questions re application for variance - Whitmore

CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the KPB system. Please use caution when responding or
providing information. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender, know the
content is safe and were expecting the communication.

Are you able to meet with us in person to discuss this application for variance? We want to make sure that we
do it correctly.--

We are very poor cell reception where we are currently staying, so it is probably best to respond via email.
Thank you.
Nancy and Craig. Whitmore

P.O. Box 1984
Homer, AK 99603
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907-299-7717
907-299-5352
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Hindman, Julie

From: Hindman, Julie

Sent: Tuesday, February 28, 2023 2:59 PM

To: Hindman, Julie

Subject: FW: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Questions re application for variance - Whitmore

From: Ogren, Eric <eogren@kpb.us>

Sent: Tuesday, July 19, 2022 11:32 AM

To: 'Nancy Whitmore' <nancywhitmore@gmail.com>

Cc: Piagentini, Vincent <vpiagentini@kpb.us>; Quainton, Madeleine <mquainton@kpb.us>
Subject: RE: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Questions re application for variance - Whitmore

Hello Nancy,

Most have on open schedule for Friday at 10:00 am, is that fit with your schedule?

Eric D. Ogren

Code Compliance Officer
Ph: (907) 714-2209

Fx: (907) 714-2378

From: Nancy Whitmore <nancywhitmore@gmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, July 19, 2022 11:25 AM

To: Ogren, Eric <eogren@kpb.us>

Subject: Re: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Questions re application for variance - Whitmore

CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the KPB system. Please use caution when responding or
providing information. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender, know the
content is safe and were expecting the communication.

We are very flexible after Thursday. We will work with whatever schedule you can set up for a meeting.
We look forward to having our questions answered.

Thank you!

On Tue, Jul 19, 2022 at 10:58 AM Ogren, Eric <eogren@kpb.us> wrote:

Hello Nancy,




Email is a good method to communicate for me as well. We can meet and | can include the platting staff as well, as they
are the experts. Do you have a date and time in mind, to meet?

Eric D. Ogren
Code Compliance Officer
Ph: (907) 714-2209

Fx: (907) 714-2378

From: Nancy Whitmore <nancywhitmore@gmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, July 19, 2022 9:35 AM

To: Ogren, Eric <eogren@kpb.us>

Subject: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Questions re application for variance - Whitmore

CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the KPB system. Please use caution when responding or
providing information. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender, know the
content is safe and were expecting the communication.

Are you able to meet with us in person to discuss this application for variance? We want to make sure that we
do it correctly.--

We are very poor cell reception where we are currently staying, so it is probably best to respond via email.

Thank you.

Nancy and Craig. Whitmore
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P.O. Box 1984

Homer, AK 99603

907-299-7717

907-299-5352

Nancy S. Whitmore
Whitmore Appraisal Services

P.O. Box 1984
Homer, AK 99603

907-299-7717
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Hindman, Julie

From: Quainton, Madeleine

Sent: Thursday, February 23, 2023 11:25 AM

To: Hindman, Julie

Subject: FW: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Whitmore Justification for Application for 20" Setback Exception
Attachments: Application for 20' Setback Exception KPB July 2022.pdf

Madeleine

From: Nancy Whitmore <nancywhitmore@gmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2022 10:58 AM

To: Quainton, Madeleine <mquainton@kpb.us>

Subject: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Whitmore Justification for Application for 20' Setback Exception

CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the KPB system. Please use caution when responding or providing

information. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender, know the content is safe and
were expecting the communication.

Thank you for meeting with us last Friday. We are grateful for the information provided as we navigate this process.
Attached please find our comments / justification. Please include this with our application.

Let me know if there is anything else we need to do.

Nancy S. Whitmore

P.O. Box 881
Soldotna, AK 99669

907-299-7717

(]
1
o)
~




July 25, 2022

We are requesting a 20’ Building Setback Exception from the KPB Planning and Platting Department
because our garage has been built approximately 10’ into the setback for GL Hollier St, a substandard
road. We acknowledge that we are in violation of KPB roads code 14.40.035: 14.40.115.

At our meeting with representatives from the Planning and Platting Department on Friday July 22, 2022,
we were told that the KPB had a surveyor currently surveying 3 parcels in this subdivision, and that we
could use this survey as the As-Built Survey or Site Survey required for the Application for Building
Setback Encroachment Permit.

This violation was not intentional; it was a collective error in planning how to use our lot (Lot 10) to
meet our objectives of building a detached garage, a home, and on-site well and septic systems. The lot
is oddly shaped, with poor soils, having the useable area restricted by both Ross Dr. and GL Hollier St.

In discussion with the builder and the excavation company, we were aware of the required 100’
separation between well and septic system (including the wells and septic systems of our adjacent
neighbors). We were unaware of the 20’ road setback for GL Hollier St. as there are no dotted lines to
indicate this on the plat: a road setback is shown on the plat for Ross Dr. Our error was in not reading
the notes on the plat.

Several photos are included to illustrate the situation.

Photo from Ross Dr looking at GL Hollier St. GL Hollier St. looking south to Ross Dr.

It appears that the 48’ exception to the road setback will not;
1.not interfere with road maintenance (road is privately maintained).
2.not interfere with sight lines or distances.
3.not create a safety hazard.

We appreciate your consideration of this matter.
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Hindman, Julie

From: Quainton, Madeleine

Sent: Thursday, February 23, 2023 11:25 AM

To: Hindman, Julie

Subject: FW: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Whitmore Justification for Application for 20" Setback Exception
Madeleine

From: Quainton, Madeleine

Sent: Thursday, July 28, 2022 8:11 AM

To: 'Nancy Whitmore' <nancywhitmore@gmail.com>

Subject: RE: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Whitmore Justification for Application for 20' Setback Exception

Hello Nancy,

Thank for you sending this on. Eric Ogren has sent the as built job out for bid to local surveyors. | have
asked him to let me know when the as built is complete and then | can get you guys on the calendar
for the next available meeting.

Thank you,

Madeleine

From: Nancy Whitmore <nancywhitmore@gmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2022 10:58 AM

To: Quainton, Madeleine <mquainton@kpb.us>

Subject: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Whitmore Justification for Application for 20' Setback Exception

CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the KPB system. Please use caution when responding or
providing information. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender, know the
content is safe and were expecting the communication.

Thank you for meeting with us last Friday. We are grateful for the information provided as we navigate this
process.

Attached please find our comments / justification. Please include this with our application.

Let me know if there is anything else we need to do.

Nancy S. Whitmore
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P.O. Box 881
Soldotna, AK 99669

907-299-7717
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Hindman, Julie

From: Quainton, Madeleine

Sent: Thursday, February 23, 2023 11:24 AM

To: Hindman, Julie

Subject: FW: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Encroachment Survey - Ross Drive and GL Hollier St
Attachments: Asbuilt Lot 10 - 36602 GL Hollier St.pdf

Madeleine

From: Ogren, Eric <eogren@kpb.us>

Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2022 9:40 AM

To: Piagentini, Vincent <vpiagentini@kpb.us>; Hindman, Julie <jhindman@kpb.us>; Quainton, Madeleine
<mquainton@kpb.us>

Cc: Ruffner, Robert <RRuffner@kpb.us>

Subject: FW: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Encroachment Survey - Ross Drive and GL Hollier St

Hello All,

The attached is the As-built for the 20ft building setback for David and Nancy Whitmore Exception application.
Madeleine please set for the next available meeting

Eric D. Ogren

Code Compliance Officer
Ph: (907) 714-2209

Fx: (907) 714-2378

From: JASON SCHOLLENBERG <jason@peninsulasurveying.com>

Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2022 8:33 AM

To: Ogren, Eric <eogren@kpb.us>

Subject: Re: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Encroachment Survey - Ross Drive and GL Hollier St

CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the KPB system. Please use caution when responding or
providing information. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender, know the
content is safe and were expecting the communication.

Eric,
I don't think there is a need to track down the legal document at this time.

Here is the asbuilt for Lot 10. The structures in Lot 9 and Lot 12 are outside of the 20' setback. Let me know if
you need anything else for those.
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Thanks

Jason Schollenberg, PLS
Peninsula Surveying, LLC
10535 Katrina Blvd
Ninilchik, AK 99639

Phone: (907)306-7065
Fax: (907) 567-1017

On Tue, Sep 27, 2022 at 8:00 AM Ogren, Eric <eogren@kpb.us> wrote:

Good Morning Jason,

| had the same question and have received a decision from the KPB legal dept. It is to be considered a 20ft Building set
back based on 1969 planning commission decision. If you need the documentation, | will see if A. Walker Steinhage,
Deputy Borough Attorney will allow the release of his findings.

Eric D. Ogren
Code Compliance Officer
Ph: (907) 714-2209

Fx: (907) 714-2378

From: JASON SCHOLLENBERG <jason@peninsulasurveying.com>

Sent: Monday, September 26, 2022 4:52 PM

To: Ogren, Eric <eogren@kpb.us>

Subject: Re: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Encroachment Survey - Ross Drive and GL Hollier St
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CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the KPB system. Please use caution when responding or
providing information. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender, know the
content is safe and were expecting the communication.

Eric,
Do you have any updated documentation about the building setbacks along GL Hollier St? The plat notes say
that the setback along the ROW should be 25ft. I'm wondering if you want to stick with the 25ft, or if there is

something else stating that we are going with the standard 20ft? I'm asking because the house on lot 9 is 24.2ft
from the ROW.

Thank You

Jason Schollenberg, PLS

Peninsula Surveying, LLC

10535 Katrina Blvd

Ninilchik, AK 99639

Phone: (907)306-7065

Fax: (907) 567-1017

On Mon, Sep 26, 2022 at 7:23 AM JASON SCHOLLENBERG <jason@peninsulasurveying.com> wrote:

Eric,

I'll get them finished up in the next day or two. Thanks for your patience.
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Jason Schollenberg, PLS

Peninsula Surveying, LLC

10535 Katrina Blvd

Ninilchik, AK 99639

Phone: (907)306-7065

Fax: (907) 567-1017

On Tue, Sep 20, 2022 at 12:08 PM Ogren, Eric <eogren@kpb.us> wrote:

Hello Jason,

How are you doing? Have you had an opportunity to make the As-builts for the GL Hollier and Ross surveys? One of
the land owners has applied for the building setback variance, all ready, and is wanting to get the meeting scheduled.
Please let me know, thank you

Eric D. Ogren
Code Compliance Officer
Ph: (907) 714-2209

Fx: (907) 714-2378




From: JASON SCHOLLENBERG <jason@peninsulasurveying.com>

Sent: Saturday, September 10, 2022 3:20 PM

To: Ogren, Eric <eogren@kpb.us>

Subject: Re: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Encroachment Survey - Ross Drive and GL Hollier St

CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the KPB system. Please use caution when responding or
providing information. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender, know the
content is safe and were expecting the communication.

I didn't get them, but I can go back out and pick them up. I'll put together an asbuilt drawing for anything in
the setbacks.

Jason Schollenberg, PLS

Peninsula Surveying, LLC

10535 Katrina Blvd

Ninilchik, AK 99639

Phone: (907)306-7065

Fax: (907) 567-1017

On Sat, Sep 10, 2022 at 1:35 PM Ogren, Eric <eogren@kpb.us> wrote:

Hello Jason
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There is building set backs along Ross and GL Hollier and the buildings are believed to be too close to the
ROW within the 20ft Setback. Do you have the measurements from the ROW to show if the structures are
or are not in the setback. Thanks

Sent from my iPhone

On Sep 10, 2022, at 11:44 AM, JASON SCHOLLENBERG
<jason(@peninsulasurveying.com> wrote:

CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the KPB system. Please use caution when
responding or providing information. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender, know the content is safe and were expecting the communication.

Eric,

I surveyed lots 9,10, and 12 on Ross Drive. There weren't any encroachments on Ross Drive
or GL Hollier St. I flagged up the ROW and took a few pictures. I'm not planning on doing a
drawing, as it won't show anything but lot lines.

Thank You

Jason Schollenberg, PLS
Peninsula Surveying, LLC
10535 Katrina Blvd
Ninilchik, AK 99639

Phone: (907)306-7065
Fax: (907) 567-1017
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NOTES

1. A TITLE REPORT WAS NOT PREPARED FOR THIS SURVEY.

ADDITIONAL RECORDED AND UNRECORDED EASEMENTS MAY EXIST.

2. BUILDING DIMENSIONS ARE TO THE FACE OF THE BUILDING.
3. BEARINGS AND DISTANCES ARE FROM FIELD MEASUREMENTS AND
PLAT KN 1648.

LEGEND
® FOUND REBAR

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT | HAVE PERFORMED AN
AS—BUILT SURVEY ON THE PROPERTY SHOWN
HEREON, AND THE IMPROVEMENTS EXIST AS SHOWN.
FIELD SURVEY ON 09/26/2022.

09/27/2022
JASON L. SCHOLLENBERG
PLS 14488-S
PENINSULA SURVEYING, LLC
40’ 10535 KATRINA BOULEVARD
> ) NINILCHIK, AK 99639
40 (907)306-7065

AS—BUILT SURVEY
LOT 10, LAKE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
SECTION 21, TSN, R10W, S.M.

SCALE: DATE:

17 = 40° 09/27,/2022
DRAWN: SHEET:

JLS 1 OF 1

N~

-




Hindman, Julie

From: Quainton, Madeleine

Sent: Thursday, February 23, 2023 11:22 AM

To: Hindman, Julie

Subject: FW: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Whitmore Justification for Application for 20" Setback Exception
Attachments: Notice Public.pdf

Madeleine

From: Quainton, Madeleine

Sent: Friday, October 7, 2022 12:05 PM

To: 'Nancy Whitmore' <nancywhitmore@gmail.com>

Subject: RE: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Whitmore Justification for Application for 20' Setback Exception

Hi Nancy,

Craig left a message for Eric asking if the meeting date had been scheduled for your building setback
permit yet and it has. | sent a letter out on Monday so you should see that in the mail very soon. |
have attached a copy to this email as well. The meeting will be October 24t at 7:30 and you can
attend in person or by ZOOM.

Thank you,

Madeleine

From: Quainton, Madeleine

Sent: Thursday, July 28, 2022 8:11 AM

To: 'Nancy Whitmore' <nancywhitmore@gmail.com>

Subject: RE: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Whitmore Justification for Application for 20' Setback Exception

Hello Nancy,

Thank for you sending this on. Eric Ogren has sent the as built job out for bid to local surveyors. | have
asked him to let me know when the as built is complete and then | can get you guys on the calendar
for the next available meeting.

Thank you,

Madeleine

From: Nancy Whitmore <nancywhitmore@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2022 10:58 AM
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To: Quainton, Madeleine <mquainton@kpb.us>
Subject: <EXTERNAL-SENDER>Whitmore Justification for Application for 20' Setback Exception

CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the KPB system. Please use caution when responding or
providing information. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender, know the
content is safe and were expecting the communication.

Thank you for meeting with us last Friday. We are grateful for the information provided as we navigate this
process.

Attached please find our comments / justification. Please include this with our application.

Let me know if there is anything else we need to do.
Nancy S. Whitmore
P.O. Box 881

Soldotna, AK 99669

907-299-7717
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Planning Department

144 N. Binkley Street, Soldotna, Alaska 99669 ® (907) 714-2200 ® (907) 714-2378 Fax

Mike Navarre
Borough Mayor

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH PLANNING COMMISSION
NOTICE OF BUILDING SETBACK ENCROACHMENT PERMIT

Public notice is hereby given that a building setback encroachment permit application was received on
9/27/2022. You are being sent this notice because you are within 600 feet of the subject parcel and are
invited to comment.

The building setback encroachment permit application is for the following property:

Request / Affected Property: Allows a 9.4 feet by 49 feet portion of a shop to remain in the building
setback granted on Lake Estates Subdivision K-1648.

KPB File No. 2022-121

Petitioner(s) / Land Owner(s): David and Nancy Whitmore of Soldotna, AK.

Purpose as stated in petition: We are requesting a 20’ Building Setback Exception from the KPB Planning
and Platting Department because our garage has been built approximately 10" into the setback for GL
Hollier St, a substandard road. We acknowledge that we are in violation of KPB roads code 14.40.035:
14.40.115. At our meeting with representatives from the Planning and Platting Department on Friday July
22,2022, we were told that the KPB had a surveyor currently surveying 3 parcels in this subdivision, and
that we could use this survey as the As-Built Survey or Site Survey required for the Application for Building
Setback Encroachment Permit. This violation was not intentional; it was a collective error in planning how
to use our lot (Lot 10) to meet our objectives of building a detached garage, a home, and on-site well and
septic systems. The lot is oddly shaped, with poor soils, having the useable area restricted by both Ross
Dr. and GL Hollier St. In discussion with the builder and the excavation company, we were aware of the
required 100" separation between well and septic system (including the wells and septic systems of our
adjacent neighbors). We were unaware of the 20’ road setback for GL Hollier St. as there are no dotted
lines to indicate this on the plat: a road setback is shown on the plat for Ross Dr. Our error was in not
reading the notes on the plat. It appears that the 48’ exception to the road setback will not; 1.not interfere
with road maintenance (road is privately maintained). 2. Not interfere with sight lines or distances.

3. Not create a safety hazard. We appreciate your consideration of this matter.

Building setback encroachment permit reviews are conducted in accordance with KPB Subdivision
Ordinance.

Public hearing will be held by the Kenai Peninsula Borough Planning Commission on Monday, October 24,
2022, commencing at 7:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as business permits. The meeting is being held in
person at the Betty J. Glick Assembly Chambers of the Kenai Peninsula Borough George A. Navarre
Administration Building, 144 N. Binkley Street, Soldotna, Alaska and remotely through Zoom.
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To attend the meeting using Zoom from a computer visit https://us06web.zoom.us/j9077142200. You
may also connect to Zoom by telephone, call toll free 1-888-788-0099 or 1-877-853-5247. If calling in you
will need the Meeting ID of 907 714 2200. Additional information about connecting to the meeting may
be found at https://www.kpb.us/planning-dept/planning-commission.

Anyone wishing to testify may attend the meeting in person or through Zoom. Written testimony may be
submitted by email to planning@kpb.us, or mailed to the attention of Madeleine Quainton, Kenai Peninsula
Borough Planning Department, 144 N. Binkley Street, Soldotna, Alaska 99669. [Written comments may also
be sent by Fax to 907-714-2378]. All written comments or documents must be submitted by 1:00 PM,
Friday, October 21, 2022. The deadline to submit written comments or documents does not impact the
ability to provide verbal testimony at the public hearing.

Additional information such as staff reports and comments are available online. This information is available
the Monday prior to the meeting and found at https://kpb.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx. Use the search
options to find the correct timeframe and committee.

For additional information contact Madeleine Quainton (mquainton@kpb.us) or Julie Hindman
(jhindman@kpb.us), Planning Department, 714-2200 (1-800-478-4441 toll free within Kenai Peninsula
Borough).

Mailed 10/4/2022
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NOTES

1. A TITLE REPORT WAS NOT PREPARED FOR THIS SURVEY.

ADDITIONAL RECORDED AND UNRECORDED EASEMENTS MAY EXIST.

2. BUILDING DIMENSIONS ARE TO THE FACE OF THE BUILDING.
3. BEARINGS AND DISTANCES ARE FROM FIELD MEASUREMENTS AND
PLAT KN 1648.
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SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT | HAVE PERFORMED AN
AS—BUILT SURVEY ON THE PROPERTY SHOWN
HEREON, AND THE IMPROVEMENTS EXIST AS SHOWN.
FIELD SURVEY ON 09/26/2022.

09/27/2022
JASON L. SCHOLLENBERG
PLS 14488-S
PENINSULA SURVEYING, LLC
40’ 10535 KATRINA BOULEVARD
> ) NINILCHIK, AK 99639
40 (907)306-7065

AS—BUILT SURVEY
LOT 10, LAKE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
SECTION 21, TSN, R10W, S.M.
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g i o *_lvr'f-7*' _ORDINANCE MO, e
-§H'Vfi;;'“ AN ORDINANCE. RELATING T SUBDIVISION PLATS AND PLATTING

:é-f‘: B BE IT ENACTED BY T 'SSEMBLY OF THE KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH

Sectlcn l f,Title 20 of the Kenai Peninsula Borough Code of

0rd1nances is amended by adding a new chapter to read'

CHAFTER 15 FLKTTING

AARTIGLE I - GENERAL PRGVISIDNS

. The purpose of this chapter is to

‘_‘pramote an’ adequate and efficient street and road syst””l"J

' prevent congestion ‘on straets and promote traffic saft _jrﬁhii{’

rsecure desirable public spaces to 1nsure the proper distriﬁutim

'”;ﬁ;of populatian, to prsvlde for adequate utilities and publ'f

=f:improvements, to in$

ﬁthe accurate survey and preper. repar -7

,ﬁtlon of plats, and,to protect and 1mprove the health.f

and general welfare of the people.*

20 15 015 Authmrity.- This chapter is adcpted under the

o authorlty of AS W 1:,340 and A8 40 15,

20 15 020 Jun&z iction, This chapter shall govern suhdlvi-
11 ‘1and % “n”the Kenai Peninsula Borough. No subdlvi-
_f31on plat requirlng commlssiﬁn approval may be recorded unlessrl
..agproved hy the commlssien A ' o L

20 15 025’ Plats required No subdlvision shall be apprmv—

RN ¢
3 .

‘;ed by the commlssion except upon the subm1551on of a plat-
';pared in‘accordanee w1th sectlon Q35_~ 070 Gf this chapter, R

:fprovided




'Ela. Subd1V151ens of 1and outelde the limite of first

'claes citltee into aliquot parts ne one- of Which is 1ese i

than HO acres hereby approved and no submission to the
;comm1551on ie required “ | |

(2) Plats of subdiv1sione of lands outside the llmlts

i_of flrst class cititee into aliquot parts o one of whlch;Q
is 1ess than 10 acres. are not required to comply W1th the;
'475urvey and monumentation prev1sione of Sec 065 ‘
- (3) Subdiv1510ns containlng 51x or leee parcele mayﬁr
be submltted at the optlon of the 5ubdiv1der en a flnalfr

']'plat emittlng the preliminary plat required by sectlone

tuo < auoz

© .20, 15 030 Def1n1tions.°r In thls chapter unless otherW1ee[7

provided or the context otherw1se requlree.

(1) “aliquet part" means a 1/2 1/4 1/8 1/16 1/32 i

Cor 1/6ﬁtq rectangular pertlon of a regular secﬁion erj

'rregular part ef a. section, exclndlng fractlenal lots.gi'

(2) "alleyﬂrmeans a public secondarywaecees andrig_ﬂ?
éutllltlee r1ght—of~way. | | | '_ ‘ |
“ “(3) ”block" meane =¥ ﬁiece or percel of land.entlrely
tmsurreunded by public streete, etreams, rallreads, rlght-of-
'rweys and parks, etc., or a, comblnation thereeﬁ. |
| '(ﬁ)-é“commlselon“ means Kenai Penlnsula Borough
i".P.'E..:sn.}aning 8emmiesion.'>" . | ' '
“(5) "Qulwdewdac"_meane.a ehort dead end street hav1ng
a. rehlcular turnnarougd : L . PR ‘

-(6) Nlog" means a pretion oﬁ a eubdlvieien 1ntended

as" a unlt for transfer cf ewnerehlp or for bullding
“l‘-development ERE .

~386



= way '

t (7) "ot depth" means the average dlstance from f'

'street righnef—way to’ “the rear 1ot line, which s the 1ot

_line epp051te and most distent from sald street r1ght-of~‘

- (8) "lot Wldth" means the distance between stralght_

'lines connecting front and rear lot 11nee at each eide cff

__the lot measured between the midwpoints of such 1ines.: -

(9) "MaJor ‘Street" mears & street shown s a maaor'*“

street on the majer street plen or . comprehen81ve plan }!

adopted by the Kenal Peninsula Borough

(10) "plantlng etrlp" means a strlp of 1and between f
the readway and the eldewalk or 51dewalk 51te.

(11) "meadway“ means the portlon of a street deelgnate

’for vehlcular traffic. Whe:e_curbs are.leié iteis the,

- pertien between curps.:wgf'”

(12) L sidewalk" means the pertlon of a etreet or i

=-_crosswelk intended for pedeetrian use only

(13) “etreet" is a general term used te describe a

naght of~way serv1ng as a means of vehlcular and pedeetrman
'travel also furnlshing spaees for sewers, public utillties

"and shade trees, incmudes avenues boulevards, roads' 1anes

and ether Waye.[ Streets are cla551f1ed as fOllOWS"

(A)' Prlmary Arterial Streete (nghweys) move through
E trafflcfto major trafflc' generetors and from | '
B communlty to eommunlty.

(B) Commuﬂity‘ﬁrter;al Streete :cellect and dietlhe

'ute ‘traffic from higher type arterial hlghwaye to 1eee

jlmportant streets, or dlrectly to traffic destlnatlans

anﬁweerye”eeeenﬁary trafflewganenetore and trafflc

Ber



_from nelghborhood to neighborhood w1thin a cummunlty._

(To sere g maximnm,of 1500 1ots or units )3

e_(C) Nelgﬁborhood Ga&lector ﬁtreets ‘collect and

dlstrmbute trafflc frem h1gher~type arterial streets,
'1to ancess streets, or dzrectly to traffic destlnations
";or serve. neighborhood traffic generators. (To serve a

maximum Qf 350 1ots or units )

‘”( ) Cnmmerc1al Access Streets- previde access to
'commer01al properties 1n bu51nees, commerclal and |
?:?industrial areas. |

:1(E) Re31dentlal Aecess Streets provide access to |

re51dentia1 property (To serve a max1mum ofiiﬂD
Z-lots or unit ) |

.»(F) Marglnal Access Streets are. minor streets Which

”7”f-eare parallel wmth and adjecent to arterlal Btreets:‘J“
'and highways, and whlch provide access to abuttlng
1.properties and protectlon from thraugh trafflc. 
glf ':.;f 5‘f{*e(14> "subdiv1der“ means any person, greup, cerporaﬁion

for other entity acting as a unit, or any agent thereof

dlviding or proposing tc divide lands 80 as to copst;gute ;

ifa eubdlvislen as, defined herein.E

(15) usubdlvisien" means the div151en~of aeﬁraéfgggﬁ,
;?parcel of land 1nto two or more lots 51tes or othe%lé' '
'e¢51°n5 for the purpose, whether Immedlate or future, of sale
Tior bullding development and includes resubd1v151on.and
 fwhen appPOpriate te the eontex, relates to the process of

- _subd1v1ding or. to the 1and or. areas subd1V1ded

 ARTICLE II. APPROVAL oF PLATS




20.15. 035 Preliminary disousslon.L The subdivider 1sif

-4‘_srong1y urgeé to discuss informally hls preliminary studies
'and 1ayout with the comm1531on in order To faCilitate the

.'preparation of the required plans and plats in accordance with-

”thss ohaptsr snd to av01d unnecessary delay and expense.fj“'

20 15 ouo Pfeliminary’p at

(a) A,suhdiV1der shall prepare a preliminary plat of 3
i }his proposed subdivision which shall comply w1th the o

7-requ1rements of sec. 045 and other psrtinent provis

:sions of this chapter except as provided in- sec. }625g

".(b) Six blaok or blue 1ine prints or the preliminary
.';_ plat shall be submltted to- the oommission.<

.(c) The fee established by the commission shall

eaoeompany the submission of the preliminary plst

' exoept 1n the oase of a final plat submitted under seo.

:34.025 (3), the fee shall aooompany the final plat.
(d) Upon subm1551on of a. plat subdiv1ding 1and within :
a: first class city the commission shall transmit three
.'rprints of the piat ‘to the City Advisory Planning

"Comm1351on for 1ts review.

20 15 045 Preliminary plat - Form.lu

"(a) The preliminary plat shall be drawn to soale of

,ijsuffioient size to be olearly leglbls and shall show

';_the_..-fomwing- B TS | .
(1) Nsme of the subdivision, (The name shall

inot be ‘the- seme ss an ex1st1ng oityj townj tract or

rsubdivision os land 1n the boraugh, of whioh*a map or’

,.nlst has been prevlously reoorded, or so nearly the'

"same as: to mislead.the publ&o or cause oonfusion )



-.(2)  Legal descriptlon? 1acat10n and tatél
?area 1n acres of the proposed subdiv1310n.' :‘
| (3) Name and- adﬂneas&ﬁfaowner, subdlvider
'Tand engineer ‘or 1and surveyor. ' |
(4) ~Date an& north ﬁoint
(5) The 1acation W1dth and name of exist1ng
;or platted streets and public waya wmthin 300 feet of
Tfthe subdiv181on rallroad rightsmofwway and other
“flmportant ﬂeatures such as section 1ines, political
=subdivzsion or munlc&pal aarpcraticn houndaries.wjﬁll-'
| " (6) A vicinlty map shOW1ng locatlon of
élﬁprsposed suhd1v1sion in relation to surrounding
";counﬁryside. -
| (7) All parcels of 1and intended to be
 ded1céted for publlc use or: recerved ithhe deeds for
”,the use cfaall property:owners in the.proposed subd1v1-
 81on, togahher Wlth the purposes, condltlons or limipa
tlcns of such reservations ‘ | |
| (B) Block and. lot numbérs and.aﬁpfox1ﬁateiﬁ
_dimensians and toﬁal numbers of pronosed lots. |  - ;I
| (9) The names and w1&ths of public streets-
| and alley& an& easemental, ex1sting and prcposed witﬁ;
;1n the subd1V1810n.‘ o -

) (10) Locatlon of ex1st1ng:sewers,rwétef main:
culverts, and ather utllities W1thin the suﬁéiv1slon
-_and immediately adjacent thereto.._ _ R
(ll) Space flor. approval of thls comm1331on._t

(12) A statement of propesed land uses.ﬁ1_ 

=$=0. |




e(13) The naﬁee of edjecent eﬁedivieions.
and pletted lots and streets or an - indlcatlon that |
. the adaecen‘s land is not subdivided*:
(14) Suff101ent spot elevatlons or contoure
: eto determlne the general slope of the 1and may be o |
.reqylred by the comm1ssien.
| | (15) Approx1mete 1ocat10ns of.areas eubgect
mto inunﬁatlon or storm water oyerflow' the locatlon )
width and direction of the flow of water courses, and
1f adjacent to” tldewater the 1ine of higher hlgh watez
(b)- Iformetion Whlch can-not be-practicably shown on.
fthe plat ghall” be presented 1n ‘a written statement
',together w1th the following; infermatlon’ -
' (1) Proposed dralnage and flood control
ﬁeaeﬁres. | |
| (2) Infcrmation on proposed water supply‘  
If such weter supply 1s to be provided by |
(A) A public utility, a letter from the
“”publlc utility should be submltted showing
.<1ts ability to serve the prcpesed subdmv;eior
anqlevidenee 1ndlcetingethat a satisfectory-
.'!agfeemeﬁtfhas been:enfereﬂ ihte-fer Eﬁch )
.serv1ce - | _. o _ |
QB) A mutal system, the eubdlvider shall :
give each'guarantee or shall pest such bond
':las deemed necessary tq insure the_inetalla?;;
=tlon of such system,.: i ._. RN
;KB} Information on proposed.sewage.diseosel
eystema If Such system ts to be?pfbiided_hﬁtel: 

391



‘(Aif A pﬁﬁiib utility;'a 1et£erefrbm”thé*§ﬁsiicf'
utlllty sheulﬁ be suhmltted shDW1ng 1ts ablllty'
5tc serve the pxoposea subd1v1smon; _;ﬁ
(B)i A mutual s&stem, the subdmv1&er ahallngeve
sucﬁ guarantee or shall post such bond as’ deemed:
‘feeeeesary to 1ﬁsu¥eutﬁemlnstallatlenwef-euch égéiém.‘
_e{4?(-Justlf;getlgnfand_?&asonﬁffqr,any_excepthg
£51£hé'§iév1§iéh§'offfﬁese.rﬁfééiaﬁd‘iéghiéeiéﬁt-
20 151050 Approval (a) Wlthln 30 days after fllmng the

;comm1551on shall determlne whether the prellmlnary plat complles

Vw1th the prov;slons of 1aw and thls chapter,-and shall approve,

':zcondltlonally apyrove, ox dlsapprove 1t and notzfy the suh61VIder

:of Jts actlon. The comm1551on s actlon shall be noted on two o

Lcoples of the plat and one copy shall be returned to the sub-e ;~ 

:dlv1dex.

.{b) Approeei.o%.afp?éliﬁiﬂﬁiyfpiat”sgeiifhétfEOﬁsfiiuie ;-w
 approval of the flnai plat but shall he aeemed an expresslonff 

.of approval of the prellmlnary plat as a gulée to the preparateon
"%of the flnal plat Approval of the prelzmlnary plat shall explre |

'after one year unless a flnal plat ig submztted to the comm15510n e

’ffor approval or. the comm;sslon extends the tlme."

ARTICLE III Flnal Plats.
'20,15[055 Flllng The flnal plat shall be prepared 1n

baCQorQange With Secs. 060 and_.065 and the prellmlnary plat ee



'approved

The flnal plat may constitute only that pnntion of _

the preliminary plat which the subd1v1der proposea to necord L

and develop at the tlme.

' '(b) The subd1v1der shall flle the final plat together

4"_with fqnn blue or black 1lne prints having all requlrec

i{rsignatures afflxed ; The orlginal and all cop&és shall

fbe 51gned If the subdiv1émnn 15 lécated W1th1n a:

"“flrst class city the subd1v1der shall“also flle a
ucertlficate of approval from the city that required
2'improvements have been prav1ded for

'J(c) A certlflate of the borough tax: collector statlng

' fithat all taxes levied upon. the property w1th1n the’l

"subdivision have been paid shall .be submitted w;th th(

'flnal plat

20, 15 060 Form.,

N llnes, 1etters, figures certlflcatlons, acknowledgy 1

f(a) The flnal subdlvision plat shall be claarly and

1eg1b1y drawn to seale upon tracing cloth or’ on good

_quality polyester fllm ( equal to Bupont Mylar) _gll

ments and signatures shall be made in permanent ink

5"The plat shall be so made, and shall be in such

CQHdithn when,filed that legible prlnts and negatlve.

can be made therefngm Sheets shall be one of flve

:-Siées' 8 1/2" x 1a"- 18" X 2&"- 24n ¥ 36" 31 1/2"xf

4” or 36" X 42" When more than one sheet 15 requirec

. an 1ndex sheet shall be flled showing the entlre Subdl-

'zvision indicatlng the pnﬂtlon contalned -on each.sheeti
" and each sheet showing the\total number-(e-g sheat 1

:{Of-E)@_ When more than one sheet is. submitted, all

: :—étgg



'USSheetemshail'be'tﬁe'eame‘size;w

(b)* The index sheet shall conﬁein the. name of the

: subd1V1elen.
(c) Plate flled for the purpose of reverting subdiz
yided 1and te acreage shall be eonsplcously de51gnated
e:" THE PURPOSE OF THIS PLAT IS A REVISIDN TO ACHEAGE"
(d)' Sufflcient data.must be ehnwn to’ determine i:'
'“'readily the bearlng and 1ength of every lot line, h&ocl
"1line,ﬁand beundarymliee;, leepeaops of;lots ehell be
given as net dimensions to the boundaries of adjoining
etreets and _'sheii:;g ‘be shown in feet. No dit’tc _mérks
sball be, used. ‘eear-irigs 'a'nd'eis;tance-s of str.a.igﬁf .
.1inee and radli and arc length for all curves as may

=be necessary to determine the lecatlon of the centers

of curves shall be shown
 (e) All linear measugements shall be ehown to the
_nearest l/lOth :foot, meanlng puls or mlnue 05 feet
5M1nemum angle accuracy shall be the nearest minute
‘meanlng plus or . minus .5 minutes.; | -
.(f) All aeeae shall be shown to the nearest ten square
'feet or to the neareet one—thousanth of total acree.;
(g) The map shall show the llne of higher hlgh water
in case the eubd1v131on 15 adgacent to tidewater and
4 the areas subject to periedlc 1nqmdation by f&ood
Water. " R '

:fh)v The boundary ‘of the tract shall be éeelgnated by

_a wider border and shall not interfere ‘with the legl—:-

'bllity of flguree or other data. :

(i) In traets ccntaining more than ene block blocks
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shall be numbered in numerical order cio:ﬁx‘é"e‘n'ci#g:w;th; "

the numérél ﬁi"'with.ho'oﬁissions'or‘duplications;=T
-'_Lot numbers shall begin with the nmnbem "1" in each
; block.and shall contlnue consecutively With nm'_;”

: ;omissions or duplieation,. If possible, each block

_; should be shown.entirely on- qne sheet, each 10t shali
 be shown entlrely on one: sheet

3y The plats shall show the side lﬁ.nes of all stree‘bi

'kﬁ'the total w1dth of all streets, the Wldl‘bh Gf the o

: fportion b31ng dedicateﬁ tha width cf exi

:tions,,and the w1dth of any nailroad righ
appearing on the plat

Hf(k) The plat shall show the sidefilnes of all

‘be 1ndicated by dotted lines of the same w1dt 5

-lines ﬂenotlng street boundariag Dﬁstances énd
s baarings on the 51de llnes Df 1ots which are cut by an
2,easemant must be arrcwed or so shown that the map Wil

i indlcate clearly the actual 1engths of the lot llnes._

The Wldth of the easement and sufficient lengths:and -
'bearings of the lines thereof tn deflnitely locate'
"the easement w1ﬁh respect ta the 1oﬁ lines must be

:shown. If eaaements are bezng ﬁedicated by the plat




. they shall be properly set out in the owneris certi—
| ”fication of dedication. . |
(1) In-orﬁer to avoid duplié&tion,«names to"be used'

'_for new streets shall be eubject to the approval of

’ -the cammlselon,_

(m): The plat shall ehow all other data that is or'

'may be requlred by law, - _ _ o

(n)‘ The final plat ehall particulariy define and
dellneate all.lots intended for sale or reserved forf

fprivate purposes, all parcels offered for dedication'f
for any purpoee, Wlth all dlmen51ens, boundarles and?
'ceurses clearly ehown and defined in every case;~“

| (o) The folloW1ng certificatee and acknowledgementse

'7shall appeer on the flnal plat such certiflcates

'1fmay be comblned where approprlate.:'

_ (1} A certificate eigned and acknewledged ,
IQby all partles having ang 1ntereet ef record in the:m
lané subdiv@ded consentlng to the preparatlon and
[recordatlon ef said plat provided hewever, that thefr
'51gnaturee of parties ewing the f0110w1ng typee af
'_interests may be omltted 1f thelr namee and the nature
.of the1r 1ntereets are enﬁorsed on the plat
- (4) Righie-of-way, easements ‘or other_f%f
'iﬁfereeﬁe none of whlch cen ripen 1nto a.:
ree, R
(B) nghtenofﬁway, easemente or reversiene,

,which by reason of changed condltione,;;ong_

'__dlsuee or 1aches appear to be no longer of

practical use or value and Whlch elgnature
. - 6
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it dis impossible or impractlcal to obtaln
;In this case a reasonable statement cf the
_ elrcumstances pgevenﬁzag the«pponunement Gf
%,the signatures shall be endoreed on the plat
() Dedication certlficate a eertiflcate"
o signed and acknowledgeé offering for dedica-
i timn for publlc use those certain parcels of
7”1and Whlch said parﬁies are requlred to .
,dedlcate Example" | |
L CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP AND DEDIGATIGN o
:I (We) hereby certlfy that I am (we are) the owner (s) of the preperty.g
.shown and descrlbed hereon and that T (we) hereby adopt this plan of
”;subdivision 'and dedlcate all streets, alleys, walks parks utility ease—

'ments, and other open spaces to public ‘use.

_;ﬁate SR L Li”:;ﬁgﬁﬁi,k%gi /:&;ih: -
BRI B e D S
Owrer T
STATE OF ALASKA. )
' THIRD JUDICIAL DiSTRICE )
on this AT day of_ -fl_, - ;;;;g;f' before -

me, the undersigned, a Netary Public for the State of Alaska, personally

appeared ;H,'[. ﬂ:ff' 2 A.. L to me known to be the person,described

,in and th executed the fcregolng certlficate of wwnership and dedication,
,3@& aeknqwledged;to megthat:he-executedpthe same as-hls fgee andquluntapy
aét; : o : C : . S SR

| Witness my hand and offlcal seal the day, month and year

here1nabove wrltten.;



3 . S ,1 . ',: < k \ x&;“ . \\ - . -
Notary Public Tor Klaske““‘“‘“*“f*”“*
My. commission exp&res : Lo

() Engineer s Certificate* 'Theffihel

_plat shall show the surveyor’s seal and signature of

r..ithe civ11 englneer or licensed surveyor respon31ble_

7for the survey anﬁ final map.

(p) The follow1ng fonm of certlfccation shall be

_:printed on the flnal plat by the pereon preparlng the

f_p&at to be fllled in after apprcval by the ccmmlssion

PLAT APPHOVAL

j Plat aPP_I'aOVed_. _by th_e “ Coﬁﬂﬂissign this’ . ; V!{& 7_(day Of :‘:-W
19 T |
- CEETEmRRTTTTTT X
Secretary o

20, 15 065 Survey & Monumentatlon.g L

,Ca) A1l subd1v1sions shell be surveyed except as -

provided in sec.54025;¢

\(b) The subdiv;eion of sectlons into aliquct parts
_and the restoration of lost corners shall be performed

' in accordance w1th the U S Bureau of Land Management

1947 Manual'of.Surveylng Instructlons. All sectian:

‘1subdivisions detalls executed as part of the surveyor"

ork shall be shuwn on the plat ‘A minimum survey f

-accuracy of l 5000 18 requlred

ey All corners of . allquot parts over twenty (20)

_abresishall be_capped monuments.

~14-~
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’etTof a resubd1v1sion the commiselon,may

(d) All monumente shall be stamped W1th the date the
Kidentlficatian of the menument and the registered
| :number of the surveyor.;_ |
tf(e) All corners found and set shall be shown.and
deescribed on. the plat | '

:}(f) Where monuments are set in untraveled areas the

'brass cap ehall be two to s x 1nches above the ground
"\ﬁAll;monumente fonnd and eet shell be proteeted by ‘a

iguard post of durable mater1a1 _ In traveled areas
:::monuments shall be set. 6” below the surface.ﬁ Control

'.pointe in. roadwaye or traveled anea need only be a “T:

.two foat iron rod ériven below the surface with at
1}least two brass cap neference'monuments o the adgae'
;i cent propenty 1ine. Aﬁ_: | : . __;k_u L
w‘{(g) Every subdlvision shall bnntain at leaet two 1nt

o f-interv151ble monuments as a baee 11ne, but in the case

”Sve eddltiona

fmonument installation if suffleient monuments already

exiet: As used in’ this partlcular paragraph the ;'

ﬁjnotds “monument“'and "marker" shall be synonymous.
Ve{tfie de51rable that monuments be set at all exterlor
,ﬁangie points in & subdlvisian. A three-quarter 1nch
:ehy thirty 1nch galvanlzed iron plpe shall be set in a
&'Tmanner eimllar to that deecribed above at all exterler
'angle pointe whméh are not monumented The distance
_7and bearings between monumente shall be shcwn.frﬁne' 
"?dletanee between required monuments shall be further

‘than~1320!$f~.. No part of any subd1v151on ehall be



"_farﬁherﬁthan'iSEGr +/m fromia'mohumegt."ﬁil monument s

Shali be«tiéa to the'subdivisioniiines.‘.All 1ot

corners ehall be marked in ay profeseional manner. b

'(h) True bearlngs and dietances to the nearest

_'established street lines and‘official GLO oﬁ BLM

._ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfg shall be accurately described and delineated
-.on the plat : | |

'20 15, 070 A :rovalw'

(a)- The commlssion'ehailnaoproﬁe or:dieapprore ﬁﬁélf«
2 eplat oP subdiv181on or dedloation within 39 daye 4
' after the flllng thereof or shell return such plat to
B the applicant for modifloation or correction Wlthin .
'330 deys fnmm theﬁfiling thereof'.otherwise, euoh plat
fehell be deemed to have been approved and a certiflcate

fto the effect shall be 1eeue& by ﬁhe commlsSLOn on |

o demand, provided however that the applicant for"

plat approval may consent to the exten31on of euoh

'perloﬂ- The grounde of dieapprove&?of any plat ehall
: be stated upon the record of the commlselon and the
'zfappllcant shall ‘be advised of the- oommlssion s d}S*'.
fVapproval in writing | _”
:1;.(b0 When the flnal plat has been approved by the)r
;_.pcommi581on | one copy ehall be returned to the subdl—'
ia;vider with the approval of the commlselon certified
o thereon. One copy shall be filed with the District
'Recorder by the comm1551on Wlthin 10 days after approv~

o_-al unless the subd1vmder requeste postponment The fQj

original tracing containlng the oertiflcation by the
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dcemmiseiqn will be reteined.by the ecmmiesion.' Plats

will be furdished at cost.

. ARTICLE IV DESIGN REQUIHEMENTS “
‘B@ 15 075 Stahdarde.V In mhs coneideration of subdivision
plats the commisszon shall apply the follow1ng standards"_ |
| (1) Baeic donsideratione._ The general requirements
'Jof the community, the particular requlremente of the neigh~

-Qberhood -and the" best use of the ‘land to be subdivided

_fTPartlcular attentlen ehall be glven to’ speclfic requlrement.
-:for parks; playgrougde, echoml sites, publlc bulldlng site:
major streets, the adequacy of street eonnections and the

sultablllty of the 1and for develonment |
'(2)d Large Lots Suble1sions coq&alnlng 1arger

; parcels than ordinary bu;ldlng lots may bekrequired to

allow fdr the openlng of future stneets and logical further
L subdiv1elon. - '

(3) Reserved Strips There-shall be no reserve o

:etr;pe_cqntrglldng acecess to,land'dedicated or inteﬁded to.
befdedicated'id'pﬁblic?uee, except‘when tﬁe control'and
,3 d1spos1tion of land compr151ng such strigs is placed W1th1n
1the juriedlction of the borough under cenditlons specifled
by the commissien and attached to the final plet._
(4) . The. proposed street layour shall be made accord—
{ing to . good land plannlng practlce for the type development
.proposed and shall be coaordinated with the shreet systems

';-of the surroundlng;areas All streets must prov1de for the

'continuation or appropriate progectlon of princlpal streets

in surrounding areas and provide reasonable mEeans: of 1ngres=

~L1e1



:fnr surrounding acreage tracts

,(5) Hestriction of Aceéss to Major Strsets Re51den

tial lots frontlng on major streets shall be provided With
uinterior or frontage acoess unless because of szze, topog
fraphy or - other phy51aa1 characteristics substantial hard—é-

'ship would result

(6) Dlscouragement of Traffic. Residental access

"7isﬁreets shall be so 1aid out that their use by through

: traffic w111 be discouraged

(7) Partial Subdivision,‘ Where the subdivision"

7:1ncludes only a part of the subdiV1der’s tract,gsﬁreet and
";f_utllity system shall be considered in the llght of proposed

o plans for the entlre area.

(8) Intersections. There sha11 be a minimum number

'-:of intersectioms of reSidsntlal streets with arterial or

major strsets

(9) Alleys.? Alleys shall be prov1ded to the rear of

all 1ots used for business purposes and shall not bs prOV1d-

;ed 1n residential blocks,_execpt where the subdivmder1 i{_
VH"Iproduces eV1dence satisfactory to the commission and ﬁhe'
"Ladv1sorty planning commlssion of the desirability of alleys

‘Where two alleys 1ntsrssct 10 foot radxus corner cutoffs:o

-.measured on the property 11nes from the point of 1ntersecg

:;tion shall be requlred

(10) Street~Grades _ Grades on arterial streets f;

should not exceed six percent Grades on other streets sh

'shall not sxceed ten percent ‘To assure that this pPOViSlOr
.*-1s satisfled the commission may require spot elsvation

'within proposed street rlghtwof—ways._

ﬂlﬁez



(11) Cul?de#sacs. Streets designed"to haveééneiend

 _rpermanently ulosed Shall be nox more than 600 feet long

- and shall be provided at the closed end with a eultable tu

-turnnarougd with 2 minlmum radlus of 50 feet to the
) property llne. - A | : |
| . (12) Half Streets._:Whére:a.dediceted.halfVétreet or
'?4alley is adjecent to the tbaetdto be subdivided the other
‘rfhalf cf the street or alley shall be dedlcated ._ ‘“4ﬁ“”
| (13) Alignment and Visibility | Clear vismillty,_j
'imeasured along the center 11ne shall be provided for at
";leaet 600 feet on,the community arterlal streets, &00 feet:
'von n61ghborhood collector streets, and 200 feet ‘on’ all
other streets.irwr | | : | |
(l#) Street Wldths. -The- minlmum right of—way w1dth

4of streets shall be as f‘c;llc:mrs.__?_-E

Prxmary arterlal street - N 100'1

.‘QCommunity arterial street - 8o
- Neighborhood collector street S 7o0r =

.Commercial accéss-street - . . - 60'.

. Residentzal . access street R 10

. Cnl=dessacs ~ _ - 1| ATA
‘ﬁarglnal access street ,‘- ’ R Yy LN
'EIleys _ : R 20'

l ‘.4'
ié" s ALTATRE

(15) Curves Where a deflectlon angle of more than :

 ten degrees in the alignment of a street occurs, a curve

"}‘of reasonahle radlus shall be introduced On streets 60

feet or more in Wldﬁh the center line radius of curvature

| "7shall be not 1ess than 300 feet on other etreets fiot” 1ess_
'?than 100 feet. | o L

(16) Reveree Curve, . Between reversed curves on all

, streets there should be a tangent at- least 100 feet’ 1ong

(1?) Street Intersection. Street intersectlons éhall

ngﬂ
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be as nearly at fight angles asV§USSib1e,.and no intersedt:.
*ticn shall be at an angle of 1ess than 60, degrees.

(18) Grade at Intersectlons.; Flat” grades are pr %E”ﬁi

'fferred from 50 Lo 100~ feet away from an 1ntersectlon, but

. in no case shall grades exceed four percent for a distanee

Lof at 1east 100 feet from all intersectlons.- o 4
| (19) Temporary Dead End Streets. Streets which are
Wistub streets de51gned to provide future connection w1th
.adjoinlng areas must provide some, type of temporary turnu _
taround at the stub end | | | o
(20) Street Names . 'Stfeeﬁs ehali be naméd in such
'ﬂmanner as to conform to adjacent areas and to avoid duplica-
:Qtlon. | o ' 7. “' |
- (21) Laycut The length ~width, and ehapes of blocks
,*jshall be determined with due regard to the special needs of
‘the types of use contemplated' to needs for convenlent
”access and 01rculation' to topegraphy, and to the conserva—
=tlon of building’ sites, o | |
(22) Long Blocks. Long'bidcks'sﬁall.bé‘proviﬁedf‘
‘1edjacent to meinlﬁhofoughfares fef the:pﬁrpose.of feducing-
the number of intersectlons, however, blocks shall not be
,;lese than 300 feet or more than 14p0 feet in lengtheunless
.existlng 'cendltions justlfy a variatlon from this requlre—
'-ment : | - .' : o | : | |
”(Eiji.Biocleiéﬁﬁ; _BlockS:sha;llbe wide_enough;ﬁa_
eeéliaw7tw¢,tiérs75f“i¢ts.ef minimum depth'eexeepﬁ.whenir
4:fﬁonted an. major streets, preventéd;by topographlcal
'condltions or slze of the property, or other particular
"conditlons, |
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"mtransporation'o“f

'7,that the commlssion may grant:

.pff

(2#) Bu51nass Blocks planned for commerclal use

z ﬁsha11 not be more than 600 feet or less than 300 feet in

alength

(25) Pédiéﬁﬁiéﬁ.Ways. Pedestrian ways not 1ess than

"ften feet Wiée shall be required in. blocks longer than 600
E3_ feet where reaamnably deemed necessary to provide circulaw

'tion Gr access to schocls, playgrounds, shopplng centers,‘

tother communlty f&CIIltlES

(26) Block Corners. At street 1ntersect10ns block

S corners maybe requlred to be ruunded at the property llnes'3

" by a radius Qf ot 1ess than 20 feet

(27) Lot Dlmen51on5. The size and. shape of lots -

) ﬁshall be such as proper for the locality ini Whmsh the
”fsubd1v1sion is 1ocated and in conf@rmance W1th the requmren

'.fments of any zoning ordinance effective for the area ln'

'whlch the proposed subdivision is located In no case it

fshall lot 11nes be 1ess than 60 feet on the buildlng line, :

'_isq. ft.; nor shall the depth be less than 85 feet not

:greater than three tlmes the width, prﬁv1ded however,j

Tfepticn thereto where - &ots'

'”aare &ocated on 5 or adjacent to steep hlllSIdESf lakes,

'3 rivers or' reeks or where property 15 ta be used for

“bus1ness or industrlal purpases.-

=="}'_(28) Mlnimymfigtqﬁ@zeg- Lots must COﬂtaln a minlmum

(A) 6,000 équénéffeetiif'seQVed by public water and
'sewer serv1ce’ . ' ' I
: 7(85» 9 600 square feet if the lots must have 81ther



;their own well or sewer disposal.

ff(c) 12 000 Square feet if both,the well and sewer'

-disposal are to be proveded on the lot;
=In those ceses where a subdiv1der w1shes to prov1de o
lote smaller than 12 OOD squere feet but not leee than'

:_’9 600 square feet with each 1ot to be served by 1ndividual

:_water and sewer dlspoeal systems, the commlseion may
g allow-such provided- _
IA) Oh}y every other lot may be built upon until
! state approved communlty water or eewer system is.
:;funded ‘Those lots which may be built ‘upon shall be
“':.determlned by the comm1551on through conference w1th
-lthe developer.; Lots approved for hulldlng shall be
.”so noted oo the final plat, or e '

i;:(B) The subd1v1der eecures the approval of the State

| Healtthepartment g fl ,’m, ':g
_ .‘In those oases Where a eubdivider wishes to prev1de
'_1ets smeller than 9, 600 square feet but not 1ess than
. 7,200 square feet with each 1ot to be served by indlvidual
'f_water and sewer dlSpoeel eysteme, the commlselon may .
?ellow such prov1éed | | |
(A) Only every other lot may be built upon until a
.state epproved oommunity water and eewer system 1is
'pfunded Ehese 1ots whlch may be built upen shall be
determined by the comm1551on through conference with
 the developer Sald buildable lote shall be 80 noted

on ‘the final plat or.

‘(B) The subdiv1der securee the approval of the. State

aHealth Department
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(29) Access to Street Eecﬁ iotyseélljébut oﬁ'af

dedlcated street. _ .
= _(35),.c§rnerngts.leA.agrﬁer;let shall be at least
:_65 feet in width. | IR
| | (31) Slde Let”Linee. Side 1ines of lots shall be

L'epproximately at rlght angles or radlal to the street:
,%m_m;”m; fmmf.'ﬁm,j_uﬁm; (32) ..... Thrcugh Lots. béﬁbléwfbahﬁegel1OﬁS§MWith““@ﬁ"“”
: _depths 1ese than 250 feet w111 not he approved except
.‘fifwhere necessitated by topographic or: other physmcal
‘ COnd1t1DnS o

(33) Bulldlng Set Back Lines The cemmiseion~sﬁall

meféqulre a mlnimum 20 foot bulldlng set back 11ne for all

‘residentiﬁl;lots,'sald set back to be maintained on. all

' U,'street frontages on . corner lots.’ﬁ

ARTICLE g IMPROVEMENTS & EXCEPTIONS

20 15 080 Improvements, No final plet of a subdlvi31on ?l;

e;located w1th1n a. first claes city ehall be approved unlese the

H';subdlvider hae an agreement w1th the city providlng for installa—

'f'tlon.nf all required 1mprovemente and ev1dence of such agreement
shall have been filed with the commlssion. : |

20. 15 085 Exceptlone

a(a) The commiS510n may authorlze exceptlone to any
ETﬁf the requlrements set forth in theee regulatlons
:7{,Application for any such exception shall be made by

a verified petitlon of the subdlvlder, stating fully

the grounds of the applicatlon and the facts relied

,upon Sueh petltion shall be flled Wlth the prellm-f
41nary plat of the eubdiv1der ;-=$he qommlsslpn shall

1?1@7



find the following facts before grantlng any

exceptlons.

(1) That special circumstances or condiu

tlons affect the properby.

(2) That the exceptlon is necessary for

the preservation and enjoyment of ag substantial prop-

errty rlght of the petitioner

'property is

(3) That the grantlng of ‘the . exception R

fwill not be detrmmental to the public Welfare or

_injurlous;to sﬁhﬂr property ln bhe arearin Whﬁch said

, (b) The commlss1on shall set forth any exeeptlaﬁ

—ifully and - speciflcally -and may requlre such~conditidns

__as are neeessayy to preserve the 1ntent cf thms chap

'Stchanter as - to llght, axr publlc health, safety,_¢

welfare and convenleﬂce. The comm1881on may impcse

' such restrictions necessary to insure that the

exceptlons and CDndltanS are camplled with

Sectdion 2.

enactment.

Thls ordlnance shall become effective 30 days after’

~ ADOPTED. BY THE ASSEMELY OF THE KENAI PENINSELA BOROUGH THIS -Ythr’sngsr

MAY 1968

ATTEST:' '

/s/ Bobsﬁoss _____
Assembly Ere51dent

=*Assembly Clerk

Rl



DESK PACKET

(MATERIALS SUBMITTED AFTER MEETING PACKET PUBLICATION)

G. OTHER

1. Remand Hearing
Building Setback Encroachment; KPB File 2022-121
Lot 10, Lake Estates Subdivision, Plat KN 1648
Applicants: David & Nancy Whitmore
General Location: GL Hollier Street
Ridgeway Area
(First Heard At October 24, 2022 PC Meeting)




Kenai Peninsula Borough

Legal Department
MEMORANDUM
TO: Jeremy Brantley, Chair
Members, Kenai Peninsula Borough Planning Commission
FROM: A. Walker Steinhage, Deputy Borough Attorney
CC: Robert Ruffner, Director of Planning
DATE: September 25, 2023

SUBJECT: Setting the Remand Hearing Date in ITMO: Setback Encroachment Permit Along
GL Hollier Street

The purpose of this scheduling discussion is for the Planning Commission to set a date to
consider this matter consistent with the Office of Administrative Hearings’s (“OAH”)
Decision. The Commission should not discuss the merits during the scheduling discussion.

On May 22, 2023, OAH Administrative Law Judge Lisa M. Toussaint issued her
Decision After Reconsideration in the matter of the Commission’s decision through Commission
Resolution 2022-46 to approve Lot 10, Lake Estates Subdivision building setback encroachment
permit located on GL Hollier Street, OAH No. 22-0925-MUN (the “OAH Decision”). The OAH
Decision is attached. An excerpt from pages 17 through 20 of the OAH Decision is provided to
highlight direction and guidance from OAH:

In deciding how to proceed on remand, the Borough is advised that
the record developed before the Planning Commission to date is
exceedingly sparse as to information relevant to each of the three criteria in
KPB 20.10.110(E). The Commission should be mindful that issuing a
building setback encroachment permit is an exception to the rule prohibiting
such encroachments. The Commission may only approve such an
encroachment permit if there is substantial evidence showing that each of
the three criteria is met — i.e., that the encroaching shop will not interfere
with road maintenance, it will not interfere with sight lines or distances, and
it will not create a safety hazard. If this threshold is not met as to any of the
three criteria, the permit may not be issued. These are affirmative findings,
and the applicant has the burden to demonstrate with substantial evidence
that they are true. It is immaterial whether there is substantial evidence
showing the opposite conclusion (that the shop will interfere with road
maintenance, will interfere with sight lines or distances, and will create a
safety hazard), because that is not the applicable standard. I caution the
Commission against trying to do the required analysis under KPB
20.10.110(E) with an extremely thin record.

Further, the Commission should be cognizant that it must apply each
of the three criteria in KPB 20.10.110(E). There is evidence that at least
some Commissioners may have applied a different standard, rather than
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Page 2 of 3

September 20, 2023
Re: Setting the Remand Hearing Date in
ITMO: Setback Encroachment Along GL Hollier Street

those in KPB 20.10.110(E), in voting to approve the permit. Comments by
Commissioner Morgan and Commissioner Gillham during the October 24,
2022 public hearing suggest they may have felt compelled to approve the
permit because they believed the Whitmores’ contractor was to blame for
the shop encroaching into the setback.

But whether the contractor or the homeowner failed to determine that the
shop would be an encroachment into the building setback is not relevant to
the analysis under KPB 20.10.110(E). Thus, it cannot be used as an
independent basis for the Commissioners to approve the permit.

I also am concerned that some Commissioners may have
misunderstood how to evaluate whether road maintenance will be impacted
by the present of the shop on Lot 10. A comment by Commissioner Stutzer
suggests that the fact that the road is privately, rather than publicly,
maintained may have influenced his vote on the permit][.]

But as Judge Sullivan correctly pointed out in the April 18, 2023 decision,
it is immaterial for the analysis whether the road is privately or publicly
maintained. The Planning Commissioner was required to determine
whether the shop will interfere with road maintenance, irrespective of
whether the road is publicly or privately maintained.

Finally, a comment by Commissioner Brantley suggests that he
voted in favor of the permit because the encroachment was into the building
setback, which is the Whitmores’ private property, rather than into the
public right-of-way.... But as explained previously, whether the
encroachment is into the right-of-way is not the end of the analysis. Said
another way, just because the property within the setback is the Whitmores’
private property, it is not a foregone conclusion that the encroachment will
interference [Sic] with road maintenance. The shop could interfere with
snow removal, for example, if it is necessary for some snow to be placed in
the setback to clear GL Hollier Street, and there is insufficient space within
the setback to place the snow due to the presence of the shop. In any event,
it is the Commissioners’ responsibility to evaluate whether the presence of
the shop on the setback will interfere with road maintenance, no matter the
nature of the encroachment. It may well be the case that Commission [SiC]
will decide it needs more evidence to make an adequate finding in that
regard.

There is not substantial evidence to support the Commission’s
conclusions that each of the mandatory standards in KPB 20.10.110(E) has
been met. The matter is remanded to the Commission to (1) make additional
findings and conclusions supported by substantial evidence in the existing
record as to each of the three criteria in KPB 20.10.110(E), or, alternatively,
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(2) KPB 20.10.110(E), take additional evidence from the parties and the
public and make new findings and conclusions under each of the three
criteria, based on the augmented record.

There are no items on the agenda for the Commission’s regularly-scheduled meeting of
October 9, 2023. As such, it is recommended the Commission first consider the viability of that
date for the remand hearing. The other alternatives are to schedule the remand hearing for
another regular meeting or to set a special meeting. The other matter for the Commission to
decide is whether to reopen the record for additional evidence and, if so, the deadline for
submittal. If the Commission elects to reopen the record, it should also consider and decide
whether it desires a new staff report after additional information and investigation in light of
OAH’s guidance. Deputy Borough Attorney Todd Sherwood will attend to advise and assist the
Planning Commission as needed.

Finally, this is a quasi-judicial matter. The Commission is reminded to be aware of and
refrain from ex parte communication.
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DECISION AFTER RECONSIDERATION
l. Introduction
Applicants David and Nancy Whitmore were granted a building setback permit by the
Kenai Peninsula Borough Planning Commission on October 24, 2022. A garage the Whitmores
built on their property encroaches into the building setback for the lot. Troy and Autumn Taylor
own the residential lot across the street from the encroachment. They appealed the Planning
Commission’s decision, asserting among other things that KPB’s setback requirements were
disregarded. The case was fully briefed, and oral argument occurred. Based on that briefing,
argument and record, the Planning Commission’s decision approving the setback permit is
remanded.
. Facts and Proceedings
A. The Property at Issue
The Whitmores own Lot 10, Lake Estates Subdivision, per Plat Number K-1648, Records
of the Kenai Recording District, Third Judicial District (KPB Parcel ID 05724008).! The
appellants, the Taylors, own Lot 9, Lake Estates Subdivision (KPB Parcel ID 05724001).2 Below
is an aerial image of the parties’ respective parcels, showing the approximate location of the

Whitmore encroachment with red hash marks?®

! Record (R.) 12, 26.
2 T.4,R. 26.
3 R. 16. The image was taken before the Whitmores constructed their encroaching building, and therefore

does not depict it. See also R. 13.




The parties’ respective parcels were created by the Lake Estates Subdivision Plat in 1969.
Per that Plat, all lots within the subdivision, including Lots 9 and 10, were required to have 20-
foot building setback limits from all interior sides and 25-foot building setback limits from all
sides with street frontage. The owners also explicitly “dedicate[d] to public use and to the use of
the public utilities the streets shown hereon.” The strip of land referred to in this decision as the
“GL Hollier Access,” situated between the parties’ lots, was dedicated as a 30-foot public use
street and Ross Drive, the main roadway leading through the subdivision to the parties’ parcels,
was dedicated as a 60-foot public use street. The Lake Estates Subdivision Plat was ultimately

approved by the KPB Planning Commission on September 8, 1969.°

R. 19.
5 R. 19, 20.



The 1969 KPB Planning Commission minutes approving the Plat acknowledged that the

30-foot road dedication to the Holliers’ property did not meet the minimum width required for

roads within the subdivision. The minutes approving the Plat state that “[t]he 30 foot road

dedication to the Holliers [sic] property would be an exception to the minimum width required

by the subdivision; however, since only one parcel of land is to be served, 30 feet of right-of-

way should suffice and the exception granted.”® Moreover, the KPB staff report in this matter

notes that the width is substandard and contends that a 20-foot setback is justified:

[t]he dedication for GL Hollier Street is only 30 feet wide. The right-of-way
does not meet KPB width standards and while constructed is not maintained by
the Borough. The right-of-way only provides access to three lots.

The width that was granted did not fit the width of any of the types of roads
defined in the code. Per the staff report it appears an exception to width was
granted. This right-of-way fits the definition of Marginal Access Streets in the
1968 KPB code. The definition states ‘minor streets which are parallel with and
adjacent to arterial streets and highways, and which provide access to abutting
properties and protection from through traffic.” While this width does not
comply with the code, the approval of a substandard width would mean that this
is a marginal access street and all streets were subject to a 20 foot building
setback at the time. The decision was made that the plat did note setbacks were
present, code required a minimal 20 foot setback, the plat did not depict a 25 foot
setback, the plat note also included 20 foot setbacks on interior lines, and thus we
are enforcing a 20 foot setback along GL Hollier Street.’

During the fall of 2021, the Whitmores began prepping for construction of a 24-foot wide

by 49-foot-long garage. They began pouring concrete on May 4, 2022. The Taylors saw the

garage foundation being poured and realized that it was well within the subdivision’s setback

requirements per the Plat, and they immediately contacted a compliance officer in the KPB

Planning Department. That person said it would take some time for the Borough to look into the

issue. By the time the Borough sent staff out to investigate several weeks later, the walls on the

garage were already constructed. Below are photos of what the construction project looked like

by the time Planning Department staff came out to investigate.®

6
7

R. 20 (emphasis added).
R. 13 (emphasis added).
T.2,4-5;R. 12.




On May 20, 2022, Mrs. Taylor again contacted the KPB Planning Department and spoke
with the Department Director, Robert Ruffner. She asked why work was not being stopped on
the Whitmores’ garage. She also said that before construction got too far along, it seemed that
the Whitmores should be told to stop construction so that the building could be moved to comply
with the setback requirements. According to Mrs. Taylor, she was informed that the issue was
with the KPB legal department, and they were investigating the setback requirements. She was
also instructed that if there were further concerns, she and her husband would be notified by mail
about a public hearing.®

By July 22, 2022, the Whitmores were actively preparing an application for a building
setback encroachment permit. KPB also confirmed that a surveyor performing work for the
Borough in the subdivision would prepare an as-built survey so that it could be used for their
permit. 1

The as-built survey for Lot 10, which was prepared on September 27, 2022, shows that the
Whitmores’ garage is located between 10.2 feet and 10.7 feet from their property line and the
edge of the 30-foot-wide GL Hollier Access. The survey also shows the setback as 20 feet along

the two sides of the Whitmores’ property.!!

o Id.
10 R. 12.
1 The Lake Estates Subdivision Plat indicated that all lots would have 20-foot building setback limits from

all interior sides and 25-foot setback limits from all sides with street frontage. R. 19. Contrary to the Plat, KPB has
taken the position that the setback requirement applicable to Lot 10 is a 20-foot setback along its sides at issue here.
R. 11, 13.




A copy of the as-built survey is shown below:

The image below is an aerial image depicting the Taylors’ Lot 9, the Whitmores’ Lot 10,
the parties’ respective homes, the Whitmores’ garage, and GL Hollier Street, located between the

parties’ respective properties.




As the record and argument at the hearing confirmed, the specific details of the
Whitmores’ garage are not disputed. The garage is 49 feet long by 24 feet wide and
approximately 1,176 square feet. It has approximately 14-foot-high walls. It also has in-floor
heating and a half bath. It has two garage doors for vehicles. One garage door opens onto Ross
Drive and the second garage door opens onto GL Hollier Street across from the Whitmores’
home. Mrs. Whitmore has indicated that she intends to use the garage entrance opening onto GL

Hollier Street to house her personal vehicle.!?

On October 4, 2022, the KPB Planning Department published notice that it had received
an encroachment permit application from the Whitmores for their garage. Nearby property
owners were also informed that the Planning Commission would hold a public hearing regarding
the Whitmores’ application for an encroachment permit on October 24, 2022.13

B. The Proceedings Before the Commission

The Whitmores’ application for an encroachment permit was heard before the KPB
Planning Commission on October 24, 2022. Eleven of the twelve Commission members
participated, as did Nancy Whitmore, Troy Taylor and KPB Planning Department staff.1* Prior
to the meeting, the KPB staff report regarding the permit was circulated and provided to the

12 R. 12 - 15; T. 4; Taylors’ Opposition to Motion to Dismiss at 18. In addition to the concrete foundation for
the garage itself, there is also a concrete generator pad along the wall bordering GL Hollier Street. T. 5 - 6.

13 R. 22 - 28. As the notice indicated, the Whitmores’ application was received by the Planning Department
on September 27, 2022. R. 22.

14 R. 29 -33.




Commission members.’® Although the KPB staff report describes the encroaching structure as a
“shed,”*® the building is in fact a detached “garage/shop,” as Mrs. Whitmore herself confirmed in
testimony before the Commission.}” The staff report recommended adopting the encroachment
permit application, as Resolution 2022-46, subject to compliance with KPB 20.10.110, Sections
Fand G.18

Per KPB 20.10.110(E), the Commission was required to apply the three standards in
considering the permit application: 1) the building setback encroachment may not interfere with
road maintenance; 2) the building setback encroachment may not interfere with sight lines or
distances; and 3) the building setback encroachment may not create a safety hazard.

After some discussion and questioning by the Commission members, a vote was taken
and the Whitmores’ application for the permit was unanimously approved.*® In doing so, the
Commission adopted each of the findings proposed by the Planning Department staff in its staff
report and placed the following conditions on the permit’s approval:

Standard 1.  The building setback encroachment may not interfere with road
maintenance.

Findings:

10. The shop is slightly angled with the northeast corner being the
furthest encroachment into the setback at 9.8 feet into the setback.

12.  Theroad is constructed by privately maintained [sic].?°

13. Due to the width of the street, improvements, the location of Sports
Lake, it does not appear that this right-of-way will ever serve
additional lots.

14, The encroachment is along a straight portion of the right-of-way.

15.  There are no terrain issues within the dedication.

Standard 2.  The building setback encroachment may not interfere with sight
lines or distances.

Findings:

10.  The shop is slightly angled with the northeast corner being the
furthest encroachment into the setback at 9.8 feet into the setback.

11.  There does not appear to be any line of sight issues.

12. The road is constructed by privately maintained [sic].

15 R. 12 - 20.

16 R. 13.

= R.31;T.3.

18 R. 15.

19 R. 1 (Planning Commission Resolution 2022-46).

2 It is inferred that this finding was intended to state that “the road is privately maintained.”




13. Due to the width of the street, improvements, the location of Sports
Lake, it does not appear that this right-of-way will ever serve
additional lots.

14, The encroachment is along a straight portion of the right-of-way.

15.  There are no terrain issues within the dedication.

Standard 3.  The building setback encroachment may not create a safety hazard.
Findings:

10. The shop is slightly angled with the northeast corner being the
furthest encroachment into the setback at 9.8 feet into the setback.

11.  There does not appear to be any line of sight issues.

12.  The road is constructed by privately maintained [sic].

13. Due to the width of the street, improvements, the location of Sports
Lake, it does not appear that this right-of-way will ever serve
additional lots.

14.  The encroachment is along a straight portion of the right-of-way.

15. There are no terrain issues within the dedication.

The approval is subject to:

1. Approved a permit to allow only the encroaching portion of the
shop that extends 9.8 feet into the 20 foot building setback
adjoining GL Hollier Street right-of-way on the west boundary of
Lot 10, Lake Estates Subdivision, granted by Lake Estates
Subdivision (K-1648).

2. That any new, replacement and/or additional construction will be
subject to the twenty-foot building setback limit.

3. That the twenty-foot building setback shall apply to the remainder
of said lot.

4. That an exhibit drawing or as-built survey prepared by a licensed
land surveyor, showing the location of the portion of the building
setback exception to be granted be attached to and made a part of
this Resolution, becoming page 2 of 2.

5. That this resolution is eligible for recording upon being signed by
the Planning Commission chairperson and will be deemed void if
not recorded within 90 days of adoption.

6. That this Resolution becomes effective upon being properly
recorded with petitioner being responsible for payment of
recording fee.?

C. The Proceedings During This Appeal
The Taylors, acting pro se, timely appealed the Commission’s approval of the

Whitmores’ encroachment permit. They alleged several errors regarding the Commission’s

2 R.2-3.




findings, and claimed that “all parties involved in the building of this shop disregarded the
requirements after it was brought to their attention. . .”??> The matter was then referred to the
Office of Administrative Hearings (OAH).?® Entries of appearance were subsequently filed by
Deputy KPB attorney, A. Walker Steinhage, and by Craig and Nancy Whitmore.?

The day after the case was referred to OAH, and before the record was produced, KPB
filed a motion to dismiss the Taylors’ appeal and to stay of production of the record.?® The
Taylors submitted an opposition to the motion and provided supporting documentation.?® The
Administrative Law Judge denied KPB’s motion to dismiss.?’

KPB then produced an initial 33-page record, and a 14-page transcript from the public
hearing in the matter before the Planning Commission.?® Next, KPB filed a motion to strike
what it alleged was improperly submitted new evidence from the Taylors and, a motion for
reconsideration of the earlier order denying its motion to dismiss.?’ Both motions were denied.*°

A telephonic hearing was held on February 23, 2023. Following the hearing, an order
was issued expanding the record with additional specific items, including items required by KPB
21.20.270(A), such as the Whitmores’ original encroachment permit application and supporting
information, and portions of the 1968 KPB Code referenced in the briefing and at the hearing.3!
I11.  Discussion

A. Procedural and Substantive Requirements

KPB procedures for addressing encroachment issues along lot lines are contained in KPB
Title 20, Chapter 10. KPB 20.10.010 specifies that “[t]he purpose of this title is to promote an

adequate and efficient street and road system, to provide necessary easements, to provide

2 Appeal of Planning Commission Decision (November 8, 2022).

3 Case Referral Notice (December 1, 2022).

2 Notice and Copies of Entries of Appearance (November 30, 2022). At the hearing, Mr. Whitmore
confirmed that his middle name is Craig, his first name is David, and that he generally uses his middle name.

% Motion to Dismiss and Request to Stay Record Preparation (December 2, 2022). The primary contention
of the motion to dismiss was lack of standing.

% Taylors’ Opposition to Motion to Dismiss (December 12, 2022).

7 Order Denying KPB’s Motion to Dismiss. As the order noted, the Taylors, as the Whitmores’ neighbors
closest to the encroachment, plainly have standing.

8 Appeal Record (December 21, 2022), R. 1 - 56.

% Motion to Strike Improperly-Submitted New Evidence and Motion for Reconsideration (December 28,
2022)

30 Order Denying Motions.

3 Order for Supplementation of the Record and Opportunity to Object (February 23, 2023).




minimum standards of survey accuracy and proper preparation of plats, and to protect and
improve the health, safety and general welfare of the people.”?

Encroachment permits under Title 20, Chapter 10, are required any time a person seeks to
construct, or cause an encroachment within a building setback. When that occurs, a person must
apply for an encroachment permit from the KPB Planning Department.®® After the application is
filed, it is then scheduled to be heard at the next available meeting of the KPB Planning
Commission.3

The Planning Commission is required to either approve or deny the permit application,
considering at the three criteria set out in Part 11-B above.® Its decision is appealable to a
hearing officer.3®

B. Standard of Review

The applicable standards of review for the approval of the encroachment permit are
set by the KPB Code. On purely legal issues, the standard of review is one of independent
judgment. However, “due consideration shall be given to the expertise and experience of
the planning commission in its interpretations of KPB titles 20 and 21.7%’

As to findings of fact, the hearing officer shall defer to the Planning Commission if they
are supported in the record by substantial evidence.®® “Substantial evidence” is “relevant
evidence a reasonable mind might accept as adequate to support a conclusion.”® Thus, the
substantial evidence standard requires the reviewer to uphold the original factual findings if they
are supported by substantial evidence, even if the reviewer may have a different view of the
evidence.

In a case reviewed on the substantial evidence standard, "[i]t is not the function of
the [hearing officer] to reweigh the evidence or choose between competing inferences, but
only to determine whether such evidence exists."4° This said, if substantial evidence in the

32 KPB 20.10.010.

3 KPB 20.10.110(A).

& KPB 20.10.110(D).

3 KPB 20.10.110(E).

3 KPB 20.10.110(H).

37 KPB 21.20.320(1).

3 KPB 21.20.320(2).

3 KPB 21.20.210(7).

40 Interior Paint Co. v. Rodgers, 522 P.2d 164, 170 (Alaska 1974).




record does not support the Commission’s findings the hearing officer may make a

different finding on the factual issues based on substantial evidence in the record.*!

Alternatively, the hearing officer has discretion to remand the matter to the Commission

for new findings.*?

When evaluating whether evidence for a finding is substantial, it is proper to “take

into account whatever in the record fairly detracts from its weight.”*® The Alaska

Supreme Court has adopted the requirement of substantial evidence in light of the whole

record,* citing approvingly to the U.S. Supreme Court’s discussion of this issue:

Whether or not it was ever permissible for courts to determine the substantiality
of evidence supporting a Labor Board decision merely on the basis of evidence
which in and of itself justified it, without taking into account contradictory
evidence or evidence from which conflicting inferences could be drawn, the new
legislation definitely precludes such a theory of review and bars its practice. The
substantiality of evidence must take into account whatever in the record fairly
detracts from its weight. This is clearly the significance of the requirement in both
statutes that courts consider the whole record....

To be sure, the requirement for canvassing “the whole record” in order to
ascertain substantiality does not ... mean that even as to matters not requiring
expertise a court may displace the Board's choice between two fairly conflicting
views even though the court would justifiably have made a different choice had
the matter been before it de novo. Congress has merely made it clear that a
reviewing court is not barred from setting aside a Board decision when it cannot
conscientiously find that the evidence supporting that decision is substantial,
when viewed in the light that the record in its entirety furnishes, including the
body of evidence opposed to the Board's view.*

C. Analysis
1. The depth of the setback
There is a question as to whether the depth of the building setback on Lot 10 is 20 feet or 25

feet. The plat establishing the Lake Estates subdivision in 1969 does not depict a setback on GL

Hollier Street, but it does show a 25-foot setback on Ross Drive.*® The plat also contains a plat note

41
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KPB 21.20.320(3).

Id.

Lopez v. Administrator, Public Employees’ Retirement System, 20 P.3d 568, 571 (Alaska 2001).
Keiner v. City of Anchorage, 378 P.2d. 406 (Alaska 1963).

Delaney v. Alaska Airlines, 693 P.2d 859, 863, n.2 (Alaska 1985) overruled on other grounds 741 P.2d

634, 639 (Alaska 1987) (quoting approvingly, Universal Camera Corp. v. NLRB, 340 U.S. 474, 487-90, 71 S.Ct.
456, 464-66, 95 L.Ed. 456, 467-68 (1950)).

46
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https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1951120165&pubNum=708&originatingDoc=Icf0a4566f38f11d9b386b232635db992&refType=RP&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=330498a182a24f618c3f0e8341668463&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=Y&serNum=1951120165&pubNum=708&originatingDoc=Icf0a4566f38f11d9b386b232635db992&refType=RP&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=330498a182a24f618c3f0e8341668463&contextData=(sc.DocLink)

stating that “[s]urface building limits from property lines shall be: Interior sides 20” and street
Frontage 25’.” KPB staff concluded that the setback is 20 feet, however. This determination was
based on language in the Borough Code in place at the time, which allowed for a less restrictive
setback, and the staff’s determination that GL Hollier Street is a Marginal Access Street -i.e., a minor
street rather than a more substantial arterial street.*’

Whether a 20 or 25-foot setback applies in this case may be debatable, but it is not a matter that
needs to be resolved in the context of this administrative appeal.®® It is clear that the Whitmores’ shop
encroaches into the setback on Lot 10, irrespective of whether a 20 or 25-foot setback applies. No
matter the depth of the setback, the encroaching shop is located approximately 10 feet from the
property line abutting GL Hollier Street. It is this encroachment — the presence of a shop 10 feet from
the property line — that the Planning Commission was required to evaluate against each of the three
criteria in KPB 20.10.110(E).

2. Does substantial evidence support the Planning Commission’s
decision to approve the encroachment permit?

The Commission concluded that the Whitmores met each of the three standards in KPB
21.10.110(E), and made findings that are essentially the same for each. For the first standard, the
Commission concluded that the encroachment will not interfere with road maintenance, based on
the following findings:

10.  The shop is slightly angled with the northeast corner being the furthest

encroachment into the setback at 9.8 feet into the setback.

12. The road is constructed by privately maintained [sic].

13. Due to the width of the street, improvements, the location of Sports Lake, it does

not appear that this right-of-way will ever serve additional lots.

14.  The encroachment is along a straight portion of the right-of-way.

15.  There are no terrain issues within the dedication.*°
The Commission made the same findings for its conclusions that the second and third standards
(concerning interference with sight lines or distances, and the creation of a safety hazard,

respectively) will be met, but added one more finding, Finding 11, which states:

4 R. 13 (emphasis added).

48 It is possible that a 25-foot setback exists on Lot 10, and that it is enforceable by a private landowner against
another.

49 R. 2.



11.  There does not appear to be any line of sight issues.*

a. Whether the encroachment interferes with road maintenance.

The first standard in KPB 21.10.110(E) requires that the encroachment will not interfere
with road maintenance.®® Although the Commission concluded that the first standard will be
met, its conclusion is not supported by substantial evidence.

The Commission’s conclusion is based on findings that contain largely factually correct
information, but they nevertheless do not show how the standard will be met. Finding 12, for
example, correctly states that GL Hollier Street is privately maintained.>? But the standard in
KPB 21.10.110(E)(2) is not limited to whether the encroachment may interfere with the
Borough’s maintenance of a roadway. The standard requires that the encroachment not interfere
with road maintenance at all, irrespective of whether the road is publicly or privately maintained.
Thus, the Commission’s finding that the road is privately maintained is immaterial to and does
not advance the required analysis under the standard.

Similarly, findings 13 (the road is unlikely to serve additional lots), 14 (the encroachment
is along a straight portion of the right-of-way), and 15 (there are no terrain issues within the
roadway) do not show whether or how the encroachment will not interfere with road
maintenance. While these findings may contain accurate statements, without further explanation,
it is unclear how these findings support the Commission’s conclusion that the shop will not
interfere with road maintenance.

The truth of the matter is that the record is extremely sparse. The evidence includes the
testimony of Ms. Whitmore and Mr. Taylor at the October 24, 2023 public meeting. The
testimony was in response to a concern posed by Commissioner Fikes about the potential impact
of the shop on road maintenance. The Commissioner asked:

[My] concern is that’s really tight, and its not to code, and so its also not
maintained, so | would be concerned about snow removal if that setback is
already going to be encroached by 10 feet. Is that loss of road
maintenance area, is that going to be impacting the person’s access to the
back land lock[ed parcel]?°3
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In response to the Commissioner’s question, Ms. Whitmore acknowledged that she had
not over-wintered on the property but answered that she thought GL Hollier could be cleared by
pushing snow towards and across Ross Drive. She stated:

I would think the snow being pushed would probably be pushed from the
farthest point of the road out toward Ross and maybe even across Ross. |
don’t — I mean, I don’t know. We haven’t been there for a winter, but it
seems pretty wide with their 20-foot seback and our 10-foot setback and
the 30 feet of road.>

But Mr. Taylor, who does the vast majority of the snow clearing himself, later testified that he
does not believe pushing snow across Ross Drive is a viable option, and the encroaching shop
will in fact impact the removal of snow from GL Hollier Street:

Clearing the snow down through there — like, it is not — yes, it’s not a

borough-maintained road, which 75 percent of the snow clearing on this

road I do myself, and we are not going to — it was stated of possibly

pushing snow across Ross Drive. Well, as we know, we’re not supposed

to push snow across a borough-maintained road and fill up the road and

leave it up to the borough maintenance to take care of. The snow is

supposed to be cleared off to the sides and not pushing snow across traffic

and impeding traffic as well. So this does limit room for snow removal as
well with them being 10 feet — approximately 10 to 12 feet with that pad.

It is unclear whether and how the Commission took Mr. Taylor’s testimony about road
maintenance into account in reaching its conclusions, and how it reconciled Ms. Whitmore’s
testimony suggesting that snow may be pushed across Ross Drive, with Mr. Taylor’s testimony
suggesting it cannot be. Nor was there any evidence documenting the Borough’s actual
requirements as to whether snow may be cleared from a privately maintained road across a
publicly maintained one like Ross Drive. Given these deficiencies and the inadequacies in the
Commission’s findings, | cannot conclude there is substantial evidence to support the
Commission’s determination that the shop will not interfere with road maintenance. The matter
will be remanded under KPB 21.20.33(B) for the Commission to either make new findings and
conclusions supported by substantial evidence in the existing record as to the first standard in

21.10.110(E)(1), or to take additional evidence and issue new findings and conclusions.

54 T.3.




b. Whether the encroachment interferes with sight lines and
distances.

The second standard that must be satisfied for an encroachment permit to be issued is that
it must not interfere with sight lines or distances. The Planning Commission concluded that the
shop meets this standard.>®

Before standard two is addressed in detail, however, it is important to understand what is
meant by the reference in KPB 20.10.110(E) to the terms “sight lines or distances.” These terms
are not defined by the KPB Code. As such, we need to look elsewhere to determine their
intended meaning.

The purpose of the setback requirement is to promote safe public access, areas for
emergency response, and ‘“traffic sight distance.” Permanent structures are prohibited in a
setback without a permit, and minor improvements are only allowed in a setback without a
permit if they “do not interfere with the sight distance from the right-of-way.”*®

The language of a former KPB design standard further sheds light on the meaning of
sight lines and distances.%” Specifically, the former KPB design standard required that “[c]lear
visibility, measured along the center line shall be provided for” within specified distances of
different types of streets.*®

A standard legal treatise specifies that a key purpose of setbacks in planning and zoning
law is to “protect[] sight lines for automobiles.”® As all the above references demonstrate, the
requirement that the encroachment not interfere with sight lines or distances means that for
persons travelling on roads near the encroachment, the encroachment itself cannot cause a
traveler’s clear line of sight, for things such as vehicles, hazards, obstructions, etc., to be
obscured.

Turning to the Commission’s findings, the only difference between the findings relied

upon for the Commission’s conclusion regarding road maintenance and the findings relied upon

55 R. 2-3; KPB 20.10.110(E).
56 KPB 20.90.010 (definition of “Permanent structures”) (emphasis added).
57 This standard is not being referenced to suggest that it applies here. Instead, it is merely referenced to

demonstrate what is likely intended by the Code’s existing requirement that an encroachment not interfere with
“sight lines or distances.”

58 R. 78.

9 83 Am. Jur. 2d Zoning and Planning § 116 (2023).




for its conclusion that there will be no interference with sight lines and distances is Finding 11,
which states “[t]here does not appear to be any line of sight issues.”®°

Although a number of the findings under standard two are factually correct, they do not
show how the shop satisfies the standard. For example, Finding 12 (the road is privately
maintained) and Finding 13 (the road is unlikely to serve additional lots) appear to have no
bearing on whether sight lines and distances are impacted. And Finding 11 is a conclusory
statement that is legally insufficient to create a factual basis or support findings of fact for
appellate review.®!

Only Finding 14 - that the road section is straight - and potentially Finding 15 — that there
are no terrain issues within the dedication - appear at all relevant to the criteria concerning sight
lines and distances. But even so, there is no analysis as to how these findings lead to the
conclusion that sight lines will not be impacted. Moreover, the record as to the application of
this standard is exceptionally thin. Absent from the record, for example, are any comments from
a traffic engineer or other person experienced in evaluating roadway sight lines. Given that the
matter must be remanded in any event regarding the other required showings, the Commission
will be given the opportunity to better explain its reasoning on the second criterion and to revisit
whether there is substantial evidence to support a determination that the shop will not interfere
with sight lines or distances under the second standard in 21.10.110(E).

C. Whether the encroachment creates a safety hazard.

The third standard that must be satisfied for an encroachment permit to be issued is that
the encroachment will not create a safety hazard.®?> Although the Planning Commission
determined that this standard has been met, some of the Commission’s underlying findings
contain deficiencies similar to those in the findings under the other two standards, and the record
is sparse in any event.®® Because it has already been determined that the matter will be remanded
back to the Planning Commission, the Commission may endeavor to make new findings and

conclusions, supported by substantial evidence in the existing record, under the third standard in

60 R.5.

6l Stephens v. ITT/Felec Services, 915 P.2d 620, 626-27 (Alaska 1996); Schug v. Moore, 233 P.3d 1114, 1117
(Alaska 2010).

62 R. 2-3; KPB 20.10.110(E).

63 As with the standard concerning sight lines, comments from a person with expertise on road safety issues

would have been useful for the Commission’s analysis under this standard.




KPB 20.10.110(E). Alternatively, it may take additional evidence and issue new findings under
this standard.®*
IV.  Concluding Guidance

In deciding how to proceed on remand, the Borough is advised that the record developed before
the Planning Commission to date is exceedingly sparse as to information relevant to each of the three
criteria in KPB 20.10.110(E). The Commission should be mindful that issuing a building setback
encroachment permit is an exception to the rule prohibiting such encroachments. The Commission may
only approve an encroachment permit if there is substantial evidence showing that each of the three
criteria is met — i.e., that the encroaching shop will not interfere with road maintenance, it will not
interfere with sight lines or distances, and it will not create a safety hazard. If this threshold is not met
as to any of the three criteria, the permit may not be issued. These are affirmative findings, and the
applicant has the burden to demonstrate with substantial evidence that they are true. It is immaterial
whether there is substantial evidence showing the opposite conclusion (that the shop will interfere with
road maintenance, will interfere with sight lines or distances, and will create a safety hazard), because
that is not the applicable standard. | caution the Commission against trying to do the required analysis
under KPB 20.10.110(E) with an extremely thin record.

Further, the Commission should be cognizant that it must apply each of three criteria in KPB
20.10.110(E).% There is evidence that at least some Commissioners may have applied a different
standard, rather than those in KPB 20.10.110(E), in voting to approve the permit. Comments by
Commissioner Morgan and Commission Gillham during the October 24, 2022 public hearing suggest
they may have felt compelled to approve the permit because they believed the Whitmores’ contractor
was to blame for the shop encroaching into the setback. Commissioner Morgan stated:

I am also included to support this. | think | have a bigger frustration with
two contractors in the area who should know all of this. It is the
homeowner’s job to do research, but we also depend on our contractors to
know their business. And so I’m kind of disappointed in their lack of
researching before they started the work and not getting good information
to the homeowners.®

64 R. 5-6, 13-14.

85 The language of the KPB Code does not affirmatively state that a building setback encroachment permit
must be issued if each of the three standards in KPB 20.10.110(E) is met. It merely states that a person seeking to
construct within a building setback must apply for a permit, and the three standards must be considered by the
Planning Commission. KPB 20.10.110(A) and (E).

66 T-7.




Commissioner Gillham commented similarly:

I would have to concur with Commissioner Morgan in that | would put

most of the blame on the contractor who should have a little bit more

knowledge on this than the homeowner. . . . I am inclined to vote in favor

of this, mostly because | feel that this is more due to the contractor’s fault

rather than the property owner’s fault.5’
But whether the contractor or the homeowner failed to determine that the shop would be an
encroachment into the building setback is not relevant to the analysis under KPB 20.10.110(E). Thus,
it cannot be used as an independent basis for the Commissioners to approve the permit.

I also am concerned that some Commissioners may have misunderstood how to evaluate
whether road maintenance will be impacted by the presence of the shop on Lot 10. A comment by
Commissioner Stutzer suggests that the fact that the road is privately, rather than publicly, maintained
may have influenced his vote on the permit:

So — and yeah, you’ve got a neighbor now and a building there and snow

removal is a problem, but, you know, the road is always going to be —

was designed not — that the borough is not going to take it over. So it’s

going to be a neighborhood snowplow operation, and you’ll just have to

figure out where you’re going to push the snow.
But as Judge Sullivan correctly pointed out in the April 18, 2023 decision, it is immaterial for the
analysis whether the road is privately or publicly maintained. The Planning Commissioner was
required to determine whether the shop will interfere with road maintenance, irrespective of whether
the road is publicly or privately maintained.

Finally, a comment by Commissioner Brantley suggests that he voted in favor of the permit
because the encroachment was into the building setback, which is the Whitmores’ private property,
rather than into the public right-of-way. He stated, “They are not out in the right-if-way at all, so |
don’t see how snow removal would be affected anyway since they’re not encroaching in the right-of-
way at all, just in the setback.”®® But as explained previously, whether the encroachment is into the
right-of-way is not the end of the analysis. Said another way, just because the property within the
setback is the Whitmores’ private property, it is not a foregone conclusion that the encroachment will

67 T-7.
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not interference with road maintenance. The shop could interfere with snow removal, for example, if it
is necessary for some snow to be placed in the setback to clear GL Hollier Street, and there is
insufficient space within the setback to place the snow due to the presence of the shop. In any event, it
is the Commissioners’ responsibility to evaluate whether the presence of the shop on the setback will
interfere with road maintenance, no matter the nature of the encroachment. It may well be the case that
Commission will decide it needs more evidence to make an adequate finding in that regard.
V. Conclusion

There is not substantial evidence to support the Commission’s conclusions that each of the
mandatory standards in KPB 21.20.110(E) has been met. The matter is remanded to the Commission to
(1) make additional findings and conclusions supported by substantial evidence in the existing record as
to each of the three criteria in KPB 21.20.110(E), or, alternatively, (2) KPB 21.20.110(E), take
additional evidence from the parties and the public and make new findings and conclusions under each

of the three criteria, based on the augmented record.

DATED this 22" day of May, 2023.

Lisa M. Toussaint
Administrative Law Judge
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e matter of the Kenai Peninsula Borough
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approve Lot 10, Lake Estates Subdivision Building

»ack Encroacl it Permit, KPB File
2022-121; KPB Resolution 2022-46 located
on GL Hollier Street,
TROY & AUTUMN TAYLOR, OAH No. 22-0925-MUN
Agency No. 2022-06-PCA
Appellants.
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ORDER GRANTING RECONSIDERATION
L Background

David and Nancy Whitmore built a 49-foot by 24-foot shop on Lot 10 in the Lake Estates
Subdivision in the Kenai Peninsula Borough. Because the shop encroaches into the building
setback for the lot, the Whitmores applied for a building setback encroachment permit under
KPB 21.10.110. After the Borough Planning Commission unanimously approved the permit on
October 24, 2022, Troy and Autumn Taylor, the owners of a lot directly across the street from
Whitmores, appealed the decision.

The Borough moved to dismiss the appeal, arguing that the Taylors lacked standing. The
Taylors filed an opposition, including photos of the shop and its location on the lot and the
s unding area. The photos were eventually added to the record, against the Borot 1’s
objection, pursuant to an order explaining that the photos “do not change the facts, nor do they
add additional facts,” but rather clarified the evidence that had already been presented to the
Commission.

Following briefing and oral argument, Administrative Law Judge Kent Sullivan issued a
decision on April 18, 2023, reversing the approval of the permit on the grounds that substantial
evidence did not support the Commission’s conclusion that the encroaching shop will not
in ‘Wi d iin ance under the first of the three cri e vin k..
20.10.110(E). Instead, the judge found that substantial evidence supported the opposite
conclusion — that the encroachment will interfere with road maintenance — and adopted sixteen

new{ 1 findings.




On May 1, 2023, the Borough moved for reconsideration of the decision on several
grounds, including that it contained findings based on information outside the record developed
before the Planning Commission; misconstrued the depth of the building setback; misconceived
the nature of the setback and the encroachment, and road maintenance on GL Hollier Street; and
misapplied the relevant sections of KPB 21.20.330 in reversing, rather than remanding, the
Planning Commission’s decision.

The Taylors and the Whitmores were given until May 11, 2023 to respond to the motion
for reconsideration. The Taylors responded on May 8, 2023, arguing that reconsideration is
unnecessary because the Commission’s findings under the first criterion in KPB 21.20.110(E)
were not supported by substantial evidence. The Whitmores responded on May 11, 2023,
reiterating many of the same points raised by the Borough but disagreeing that a remand is
appropriate. Instead, they argued that the Planning Commission’s approval of the permit should
be approved because it is supported by substantial evidence as to each of the three criteria.

In accordance with KPB 21.20.350(C), this order responds to the motion for
reconsideration and addresses the arguments in the motion. The arguments have led to
clarification or correction of language in the original decision, which will be accomplished
through a “Decision After Reconsideration” issued later today. The outcome of the case will
change, as the matter will be remanded to the Commission to (1) make additional findings and
conclusions supported by substantial evidence in the existing record as to each of the three
criteria in KPB 21.20.110(E), or, alternatively, (2) open the record to take additional evidence
from the parties and the public and make new findings and conclusions under each of the three
criteria, based on the augmented record.

I, Commentary on the Borough’s and Applicant’s Arguments?

A. Arguments about findings based on evidence not before the Planning
Commission

1. Argument about Finding 14 (drainage)

Citing to KPB 21.20.030(3), which allows a hearing officer to “make a different finding
on a factual issue, based on the evidence in the record before the planning commission,” the

Borough asserts that Judge Sullivan improperly adopted findings predicated upon information

! Because many of the Borough’s and the Whitmores’ arguments are largely the same, the
Whitmore’s arguments will be discussed separately only where they raised new points not presented by the
Borough.



outside the record before the Planning Commission. The Borough points to one finding -
Finding 14 - which states that “[t]he encroachment has caused drainage issues.” The judge
explained that “snow sloughing from the roof could be an issue with this encroachment.” His
conclusion was based on “a detailed explanation and photographic evidence” (namely, Photo 3)
provided by the Taylors in their opposition to the Borough’s motion to dismiss, which shows
“how water from the roof” of the encroaching shop “has drained into GL Hollier Street,
apparently causing erosion and impacting maintenance.”? The judge eventually expanded the
record after oral argument to include the photo, as well as others in the Taylor’s opposition to the
motion to dismiss, explaining that the photos did not “change . . . or add additional facts” but
rather clarified the evidence that had already been presented to the Commission.®

The Taylors may have legitimate concerns about drainage from the shop roof impacting
the GL Hollier Street, but they did not articulate those concerns in writing to the Planning
Commission (indeed, there were no written comments submitted on the proposed permit at all),
or in their testimony at the October 24, 2022 public meeting. They raised those concerns for the
first time in their opposition to the Borough’s motion to dismiss. Although that information
could have been provided to the Planning Commission earlier, it was not before the Commission
when the Commission approved the permit on October 24, 2022. Thus, the information about
drainage, while appropriate to consider in the context of a motion to dismiss based on standing,
should not have been considered as to concerns not previously raised to the Commission.
Finding 14 was based on information not before the Planning Commission when it approved the
permit, and was used as an additional factual basis for Judge Sullivan’s conclusion that the shop
will impact road maintenance, rather than to merely clarifying existing evidence. The Decision
After Reconsideration will remove that finding and make other related adjustments as necessary.

2. Argument about fire safety
The Whitmores argue that Judge Sullivan misapplied KPB 21.20.270(c). That section

requires that an appeal “shall be on the record,” and that the record may not be supplemented

absent a showing that “even with due diligence the new evidence could not have been provided
before the planning commission and a reasonable opportunity is provided” for the other parties to
respond to it. The Whitmores claim that Judge Sullivan erred in relying on photos and

testimonial evidence offered by the Taylors in their opposition to the motion to dismiss because

2 Decision at 20.
3 Order Expanding the Record at 3.




tl  information could have been submitted to the Commission previously, but it was not. They
point to the judge’s statements in the decision about fire safety. He described the “close
proximity of the Whitmore’s [sic] garage to the Taylors’ home” as creating a “safety hazard in
the event the structure is ever fully engulfed in a fire,” and noted that “radiant heat from the fire
may well cause the Taylors’ home to catch fire.”
As with the Taylors’ concerns about drainage, they may have valid fire safety concerns

related to the shop. But those concerns were not before the Planning Commission when it

roved the permit on October 24, 2022, because the Taylors did not raise those concerns until
they filed their opposition to the Borough’s motion to dismiss. They could have provided that
information in writing or orally at the public hearing, but they did not do so. Thus, the
information should not have been considered in Judge Sullivan’s April 18, 2023 decision as to
concerns not previously raised to the Commission. Adjustments will be made in the Decision
After Reconsideration accordingly.

3. Argument about information in opposition to motion to dismiss

The Whitmores broadly assert that the new information in the Taylors’ opposition to the
motion to dismiss, including the photos, were “highly prejudicial” to them. No examples were
provided other than those concerning drainage (Finding 14) and fire safety, which have already
been discu:  d above. Nonetheless, new information in the opposition to the motion to dismiss
will not be used as a factual basis for any of the conclusions in the Decision After
Reconsideration. The photos will only be used to the extent they help clarify the location of the
shop on the lot and in the surrounding area.

B. Arguments about the depth of the sethack

The Borough alleges that Judge Sullivan erred in finding the building setback on the lot
to be 25 feet from the property line, rather than 20 feet, and that this error impacted three of his
findings (Findings 3, 4, and 5). The judge’s conclusion was based on a 25-foot setback specified
in a plat note on the 1969 subdivision plat establishing the Lake Estates subdivision. Citing
language in a footnote in Yankee v. City of Borough of Juneau, 407 P.13d 460 (Alaska 2017),

Ju™ Sullivan determined that the plat note specifying the setback constituted a covenant that

runs with the land and binds all subsequent landowners, including the Whitmores, despite




language in the Borough Code in place at the time, which allowed developers to specify a less
restrictive setback.*

The Borough claims Judge Sullivan’s reliance on Yankee was misplaced, arguing that
provision at issue in that case, a section of the City and Borough of Juneau Code, is
distinguishable from the KPB Code. While the Juneau code expressly describes a plat note as a
restrictive covenant that runs with the land in favor of the municipality and the public,
enforceable against future owners, the KPB Code contained no such language in 1968.
Moreover, the Yankee court held that the City and Borough of Juneau had discretion, but not the
obligation, to enforce the restrictive covenant at issue. Thus, even if were the case that a plat
note is a covenant running with the land under the KPB code, the Borough would not be required
to enforce it. Thus, the Borough argues that Judge Sullivan lacked the authority to compel the
Borough to apply the 25-foot setback in the plat note.

Whether a 20 or 25-foot setback applies in this case may be debatable, but it is not a
matter that needs to be resolved in the context of this administrative appeal.® It is clear that the
Whitmores’ shop encroaches into the setback on Lot 10, irrespective of whether a 20 or 25-foot
setback applies. No matter the depth of the setback, the encroaching shop is located
approximately 10 feet from the property line abutting GL Hollier Street. It is this encroachment
— the presence of a shop 10 feet from the property line — that the Planning Commission was
required to evaluate against each of the three criteria in KPB 20.10.110(E).

The Decision After Reconsideration will remove the findings concerning the depth of the
setback and otherwise correct the manner in which this subject was handled in the original
decision. Because this matter is being remanded back to the Planning Commission to take
additional evidence and make new findings, if the Borough believes the depth of the setback is
relevant to its analysis under KPB 20.10.110(E), it is free to explore that subject further on
remand.

C. Arguments about the nature of the setback and the encroachment, and

road maintenance

1. Argument about the nature of the setback and the encroachment

4 The 1969 Borough Code allowed for a “minimum 20-foot building setback for dedicated rights-of-
way in subdivisions.

5 It is possible that a 25-foot setback exists on Lot 10, and that it is enforceable by a private landowner
against another through a civil action.




Relying on Mr. Taylor’s testimony at the October 24, 2022 public meeting, Judge
Sullivan concluded that the encroaching shop will impact road maintenance by making snow
removal, the vast majority of which is done by Mr. Taylor, more difficult by limiting the space
available for snow cleared from GL Hollier Street. The Borough challenges the judge’s findings
(Findings 13, 15, and 16) supporting this conclusion, claiming he misconstrued the setback as an
easement rather than private property, and he conflated the building setback encroachment here
with an encroachment into the right-of-way. The Borough focuses on the judge’s statement that
“KPB was anxious to avoid any conclusion that the encroachment was an encroachment into a
public right-of-way,” and statements suggesting the setback may be used for snow cleared from
the road. According to the Borough, no portion of the setback was ever available for that
purpose because the setback is private property, and pushing snow onto it would be a trespass.
The Borough appears to suggest that the shop could not possibly impact road maintenance
because any snow removal or other maintenance occurring in the setback, the Whitmores’
private property, would be illegal.

The Borough is correct that the setback on Lot 10 is private property, and the
encroachment is into the building setback — not into the right-of-way (GL Hollier Street). But
the contention that Judge Sullivan determined otherwise is incorrect. Nevertheless, in the
Decision After Reconsideration, adjustments will be made to statements in the original decision
that could potentially be misconstrued as suggesting that the encroachment here was into the
right-of-way.

2. Argument about trespass

Regarding the assertion that Mr. Taylor would be committing a trespass if he were to
place any snow cleared from the street onto the setback, this argument strains logic. Snow
removed from a 30-foot-wide road needs to go somewhere. Logic dictates that when snow is
pushed from a road, some amount may need to be placed (or may incidentally spill) onto
property abutting the road. This would occur whether the road is publicly maintained by an
entity like the Borough, or privately maintained by a person like Mr. Taylor. But no one could
legitimately contend that the Borough would be committing a trespass in those circumstances.
Nor can a legitimate argument be made that Mr. Taylor would be committing a trespass in those

circumstances either.® The suggestion that the shop will not interfere with road maintenance,

6 There could be a trespass if Mr. Taylor were to remove snow from his own property and place it on
the Whitmores’ setback. But there is no evidence of this occurring. Nor is there any evidence that Mr.




including snow removal, simply because the setback is on private property (i.e., the
encroachment is not into the right-of-way) where no snow can be placed, is incorrect. Indeed,
such an interpretation would effectively render the requirement of KPB 21.20.110(E)
meaningless—a result inconsistent with the rules of statutory construction requiring that a statute
be interpretated “to give effect to all its provisions, so that no part will be inoperative or
superfluous, void or insignificant.”’

3. Argument about snow clearing across public roads

The Borough also challenges Finding 13 in the April 18, 2023 decision, which reads,
“Because the Borough mandates that snow cannot be pushed across public roadways, snow
removal is now restricted on three of four sides. . ..” The authority cited for the finding is Mr.
Taylor’s testimony before the Planning Commission, summarized on page 18 of the decision,
and a footnote referencing a Borough website containing information about illegal snow clearing
activities. The website states that “[i]t is illegal to plow snow into the roads, ditches, and rights
of way from private property,” but, as the Borough points out, it is silent as to snow plowed from
a public right-of-way. Thus, the Borough contends that Finding 13 is misconceived.

The Borough’s point is well-taken. Finding 13 will be removed, and other adjustments
will be made in the Decision After Reconsideration, accordingly.

D. Arguments about the application of KPB 21.20.320 and 21.20.330

Claiming that the judge made findings “based upon a mix of misconceived facts” and
evidence outside the record before the Planning Commission, the Borough contends the judge
misapplied KPB 21.20.330 and 21.20.330, and should have remanded rather than reversed the
Commission’s decision. The Borough points to language in KPB 21.20.330(3), which states:

The hearing officer may revise and supplement the planning commission’s
findings of fact. Where the hearing officer decides that a finding of fact
made by the planning commission is not supported by substantial evidence,
the hearing officer may make a different finding on the factual issues,
based on the evidence in the record developed before the planning
commission if it concludes a different finding was supported by substantial
evidence, or may remand the matter to the planning commission as
provided in KPB 21.20.330(B). (Emphasis supplied.)

Taylor places a disproportionate amount of snow removed from the roadway onto the Whitmores’ setback
when he plows the road.

7 Alliance of Concerned Taxpayers, Inc. v. Kenai Peninsula Borough, 273 P.3d 1128, 1139 (Alaska
2012) (quoting 2A Norman J. Singer & Shambie Singer, SUTHERLAND STATUTES AND STATUTORY
CONSTRUCTION § 46:6 (7th ed. 2007)).
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KPB 21.20.330(A) and (B), in turn, provide:

A. Changed circumstances. An appeal alleging changed
circumstances or new relevant evidence, which with due diligence could
not have been presented to the planning commission, shall be remanded to
the planning commission.

B. Lack of findings. Appeals from the planning commission decisions
which lack findings of fact and conclusions by the planning commission or
contain findings of fact and conclusions which are not supported by
substantial evidence shall be remanded to the planning commission with
an order to make adequate findings of fact and conclusions. (Emphasis
supplied.)

As explained previously, the Decision After Reconsideration will reflect adjustments to
the original decision to account for problems with some of the factual findings, including that
one finding was based on information outside the record before the Planning Commission
(Finding 14), and that others were predicated on various misconceptions. | agree that remand is
the appropriate remedy here. The matter will be remanded back to the Planning Commission to
(1) make findings of fact and conclusion supported by substantial evidence in the existing record
as to each of the three criteria in KPB 21.20.110(E), or, alternatively, (2) take additional
evidence from the parties and the public and make new findings and conclusions under each of
the three criteria, based on the augmented record.

E. Argument that the Planning Commission’s findings should be affirmed

The Whitmores argue that substantial evidence supports the Commission’s conclusions
that each of the three standards in in KPB 21.20.110(E). | disagree. The record in this case is
extremely thin as to evidence relevant to each of the three standards. The matter will be
remanded back to the Commission, where there will be an opportunity to take additional
evidence and make new findings and conclusions. Because the Whitmores have the burden on
each of the three criteria, they may wish to participate in the remand proceeding.

I1l.  Concluding Guidance

In deciding how to proceed on remand, the Borough is cautioned that the record
developed before the Planning Commission to date is exceedingly sparse as to information
relevant to each of the three criteria in KPB 20.10.110(E). The Commission should be mindful
that issuing a building setback encroachment permit is an exception to the rule prohibiting such
encroachments. The Commission may only approve an encroachment permit if there is

substantial evidence showing that each of the three criteria is met — i.e., that the encroaching



shop will not interfere with road maintenance, it will not interfere with sight lines or distances,
and it will not create a safety hazard.® If this threshold is not met as to any of the three criteria,
the permit may not be issued. These are affirmative findings, and the applicant has the burden to
demonstrate with substantial evidence that they are true. It is immaterial whether there is
substantial evidence showing the opposite conclusion (that the shop will interfere with road
maintenance, will interfere with sight lines or distances, and will create a safety hazard), because
that is not the applicable standard. | caution the Commission against trying to do the required
analysis under KPB 20.10.110(E) with an extremely thin record.

Further, the Commission should be cognizant that it must apply each of three criteria in
KPB 20.10.110(E).° There is evidence that at least some Commissioners may have applied a
different standard, rather than those in KPB 20.10.110(E), in voting to approve the permit.
Comments by Commissioner Morgan and Commission Gillham during the October 24, 2022
public hearing suggest they may have felt compelled to approve the permit because they believed
the Whitmores’ contractor was to blame for the shop encroaching into the setback.
Commissioner Morgan stated:

I am also included to support this. | think I have a bigger frustration
with two contractors in the area who should know all of this. It is
the homeowner’s job to do research, but we also depend on our
contractors to know their business. And so I’m kind of
disappointed in their lack of researching before they started the
work and not getting good information to the homeowners.©

Commissioner Gillham commented similarly:

I would have to concur with Commissioner Morgan in that | would
put most of the blame on the contractor who should have a little bit
more knowledge on this than the homeowner. . .. I am inclined to
vote in favor of this, mostly because | feel that this is more due to
the contractor’s fault rather than the property owner’s fault.!

8 To approve the permit, there must be substantial evidence to show that each the three criteria will
be met. It is immaterial whether there is substantial evidence showing the opposite conclusion (that the shop
will interfere with road maintenance, will interfere with sight lines or distances, and will create a safety
hazard), because that is not the applicable standard.)

9 The language of the KPB Code does not affirmatively state that a building setback encroachment
permit must be issued if each of the three standards in KPB 20.10.110(E) is met. It merely states that a
person seeking to construct within a building setback must apply for a permit, and the three standards must
be considered by the Planning Commission. KPB 20.10.110(A) and (E).
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But whether the contractor or the homeowner failed to determine that the shop would be an
encroachment into the building setback is not relevant to the analysis under KPB 20.10.110(E).
Thus, it cannot be used as an independent basis for the Commissioners to approve the permit.

I also am concerned that some Commissioners may have misunderstood how to evaluate
whether road maintenance will be impacted by the presence of the shop on Lot 10. A comment
by Commissioner Stutzer suggests that the fact that the road is privately, rather than publicly,
maintained may have influenced his vote on the permit:

So - and yeah, you’ve got a neighbor now and a building there and

snow removal is a problem, but, you know, the road is always

going to be — was designed not — that the borough is not going to

take it over. So it’s going to be a neighborhood snowplow

operation, and you’ll just have to figure out where you’re going to

push the snow.
But as Judge Sullivan correctly pointed out in the April 18, 2023 decision, it is immaterial for the
analysis whether the road is privately or publicly maintained. The Planning Commissioner was
required to determine whether the shop will interfere with road maintenance, irrespective of
whether the road is publicly or privately maintained.

Finally, a comment by Commissioner Brantley suggests that he voted in favor of the
permit because the encroachment was into the building setback, which is the Whitmores’ private
property, rather than into the public right-of-way. He stated, “They are not out in the right-if-
way at all, so | don’t see how snow removal would be affected anyway since they’re not
encroaching in the right-of-way at all, just in the setback.”*? But as explained previously,
whether the encroachment is into the right-of-way is not the end of the analysis. Said another
way, just because the property within the setback is the Whitmores’ private property, it is not a
foregone conclusion that the encroachment will not interference with road maintenance. The
shop could interfere with snow removal, for example, if it is necessary for some snow to be
placed in the setback to clear GL Hollier Street, and there is insufficient space within the setback
to place the snow due to the presence of the shop. In any event, it is the Commissioners’
responsibility to evaluate whether the presence of the shop on the setback will interfere with road
maintenance, no matter the nature of the encroachment. It may well be the case that Commission

will decide it needs more evidence to make an adequate finding in that regard.
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V. Order

The motion for reconsideration is granted. A revised decision will be issued later today.

DATED: May 22, 2023.

By:

Lisa M. Toussaint
Administrative Law Judge

Certificate of Service: | hereby certify that on May 22, 2023, a true and correct copy of this document was
served on the following by email, or mail if email is unavailable, to the following listed below:

Troy & Autumn Taylor
43680 Ross Drive
Soldotna, Alaska 99669
auttytaylor@yahoo.com
troytaylor32@yahoo.com

David & Nancy Whitmore
P.O. Box 881

Soldotna, Alaska 99669
nancywhitmore@gmail.com
dcwhitmore@gmail.com

Jason Schollenberg

Peninsula Surveying, LLC
10535 Katrina Blvd.

Ninilchik, Alaska 99639
jason@peninsulasurveying.com

Julie Hindman

KPB Platting Specialist
144 N. Binkley Street
Soldotna, Alaska 99669
jhindman@kpb.us

Robert Ruffner

KPB Planning Director
144 N. Binkley Street
Soldotna, Alaska 99669

rruffner@kpb.us

Michele Turner, MMC
Borough Clerk

144 N. Binkley Street
Soldotna, Alaska 99669
micheleturner@kpb.us

A. Walker Steinhage
KPB Deputy Attorney
144 N. Binkley Street
Soldotna, Alaska 99669
wsteinhage@Kkpb.us
legal@kpb.us

Office of Administrative Hearings


mailto:auttytaylor@yahoo.com
mailto:troytaylor32@yahoo.com
mailto:nancywhitmore@gmail.com
mailto:dcwhitmore@gmail.com
mailto:jason@peninsulasurveying.com
mailto:jhindman@kpb.us
mailto:rruffner@kpb.us
mailto:mturner@kpb.us
mailto:wsteinhage@kpb.us
mailto:legal@kpb.us
hmcanfield
Lisa Toussaint - LMT


-
Planning Department

144 N. Binkley Street, Soldotna, Alaska 99669 ® (907) 714-2200 ® (907) 714-2378 Fax

Peter A. Micciche
Borough Mayor

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH PLANNING COMMISSION
NOTICE OF BUILDING SETBACK ENCROACHMENT PERMIT

Public notice is hereby given of a remand hearing on a building setback encroachment permit application,
originally received on 9/27/2022. You are being sent this notice because you are within 600 feet of the
subject parcel and are invited to comment.

The building setback encroachment permit application is for the following property:

Request / Affected Property: Allows a 9.4 feet by 49 feet portion of a shop to remain in the building
setback granted on Lake Estates Subdivision K-1648.

KPB File No. 2022-121

Petitioner(s) / Land Owner(s): David and Nancy Whitmore of Soldotna, AK.

Purpose as stated in petition: We are requesting a 20’ Building Setback Exception from the KPB Planning
and Platting Department because our garage has been built approximately 10" into the setback for GL
Hollier St, a substandard road. We acknowledge that we are in violation of KPB roads code 14.40.035:
14.40.115. At our meeting with representatives from the Planning and Platting Department on Friday July
22, 2022, we were told that the KPB had a surveyor currently surveying 3 parcels in this subdivision, and
that we could use this survey as the As-Built Survey or Site Survey required for the Application for Building
Setback Encroachment Permit. This violation was not intentional; it was a collective error in planning how
to use our lot (Lot 10) to meet our objectives of building a detached garage, a home, and on-site well and
septic systems. The lot is oddly shaped, with poor soils, having the useable area restricted by both Ross
Dr. and GL Hollier St. In discussion with the builder and the excavation company, we were aware of the
required 100’ separation between well and septic system (including the wells and septic systems of our
adjacent neighbors). We were unaware of the 20’ road setback for GL Hollier St. as there are no dotted
lines to indicate this on the plat: a road setback is shown on the plat for Ross Dr. Our error was in not
reading the notes on the plat. It appears that the 48’ exception to the road setback will not; 1.not interfere
with road maintenance (road is privately maintained). 2. Not interfere with sight lines or distances.

3. Not create a safety hazard. We appreciate your consideration of this matter.

Building setback encroachment permit reviews are conducted in accordance with KPB Subdivision
Ordinance.

Public hearing will be held by the Kenai Peninsula Borough Planning Commission on Monday, October 9,
2023, commencing at 7:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as business permits. The meeting is being held in
person at the Betty J. Glick Assembly Chambers of the Kenai Peninsula Borough George A. Navarre
Administration Building, 144 N. Binkley Street, Soldotna, Alaska and remotely through Zoom.



To attend the meeting using Zoom from a computer visit https://us06web.zoom.us/j9077142200. You
may also connect to Zoom by telephone, call toll free 1-888-788-0099 or 1-877-853-5247. If calling in you
will need the Meeting ID of 907 714 2200. Additional information about connecting to the meeting may
be found at https://www.kpb.us/planning-dept/planning-commission.

Anyone wishing to testify may attend the meeting in person or through Zoom. Written testimony may be
submitted by email to planning@kpb.us, or mailed to the attention of Beverly Carpenter, Kenai Peninsula
Borough Planning Department, 144 N. Binkley Street, Soldotna, Alaska 99669. [Written comments may also
be sent by Fax to 907-714-2378]. All written comments or documents must be submitted by 1:00 PM,
Friday, October 6, 2023. The deadline to submit written comments or documents does not impact the
ability to provide verbal testimony at the public hearing.

Additional information such as staff reports and comments are available online. This information is available
the Monday prior to the meeting and found at https://kpb.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx. Use the search
options to find the correct timeframe and committee.

For additional information contact Beverly Carpenter (bcarpenter@kpb.us) or Madeleine Quainton
(mquainton@kpb.us), Planning Department, 714-2200 (1-800-478-4441 toll free within Kenai Peninsula
Borough).

Mailed September 26, 2023
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|:| Input parcel(s)

Parcels within 300 feet
(when applicable).

Parcels within 600ft

Notification Report
Tuesday, September 26, 2023

Report generated for KPB Parcel(s):
05725001

The following list was created by applying a 600 ft buffer to the parcel or parcels indicated above. Questions or comments can be relayed to BCarpenter@kpb.us.

All Ownership Records

PARCEL_ID OWNER ADDRESS CITYy STATE ZIP

05704414 MARKHAM ERICA 3374 EVALLEJOCT  GILBERT AZ 85298
05723007 MILLER FRITZ W & CINDY A 43850 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05723008 GIOVANELLI TERRI L 43732 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05724001 TAYLOR AUTUMN R 43680 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05725001 WHITMORE NANCY PO BOX 881 SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05725002 WALKER DONALD G PO BOX 3161 MONTROSE co 81402
05725003 HAWKES RENAE SALLY 43610 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05704413 INNES DAVID SCOTT 740 E REDOUBT AVE SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05724003 RODGERS CHARLES & JEANETTE 43725 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05724007 RODGERS CHARLES R & JEANETTE K~ 43725 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05725003 HAWKES BRADFORD JAY 43610 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05725011 IVERSON JAMES P & HEIDI L 43530 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05704414 MARKHAM ZACHARY 3374 EVALLEJOCT  GILBERT AZ 85298
05724004 MARCOTTE TAMAR G 43625 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05724008 RAWSON JOYCE 43565 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05724008 RAWSON SETH 43565 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05725001 WHITMORE DAVID C PO BOX 881 SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05725006 IVERSON JAMES P & HEIDI L 43530 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05704414 MARKHAM MICHAEL 3374 EVALLEJOCT  GILBERT AZ 85298
05704414 MARKHAM MICHELE 3374 EVALLEJOCT  GILBERT AZ 85298
05723009 RODGERS CHARLES & JEANETTE 43725 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05724001 TAYLOR TROY R 43680 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669
05724002 RODGERS CHARLES & JEANETTE 43725 ROSS DR SOLDOTNA AK 99669

J-148



	Appreal Record
	PC Resolution 2022-46
	10-25-23 Notice of Decision
	10-24-22 PC Meeting Materials
	Vicinity Map
	Aerial View
	As-built
	Staff Report
	Aerial View Zoomed Out
	Wetlands Map
	Contour Map
	Parent Plats
	09-08-69 PC Meeting Minutes

	10-4-22 PHN
	10-24-22 PC Meeting Minutes
	10-24-23 Verbatim Transcript

	Addendum To The Appeal Record
	Application
	Email Communications
	KPB Ordinance No. 26

	09-25-23 PC Meeting Materials
	Memo
	Decision After Reconsideration
	Order Granting Reconsideration




